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Good evening State Senator Maynard, State Representative Guerrera, and all the
honorable members of the Transportation Committee of the Connecticut General
Assembly. My name Werner Oyanadel, Acting Executive Director of the Latino
and Puerto Rican Affairs Commission (LPRAC), T am here today to speak in support
of Proposed H.B. No. 6037 “An Act Concerning the Issnance of a Motor Vehicle
Operator’s License to Certain Immigrants,” in support of Proposed Bill No, 68, “An
Act Establishing A Program Allowing Certain State Residenis To Obtain A Driver's
License or Vehicle Registration Regardless of Citizenship or Immigration Status,”
and in support of Proposed S.B. No 69 “An Act Allowing Any Person Accepted into .
the Federal Deferred Action for Childhood Artivals Program To Obtain A Motor

" Vehicle Operator's License,” and finally I am here to oppose proposed bill No. 643

“An Act Concerning Citizenship Status Verification Prior to the Issuance of a
Driver’s License,”

LPRAC, for the record, conducted a yearlong study about the potential economic
and public safety benefits for the State of Connecticut to issue driver's licenses for -
undocumented immigrants and found that: (1) there is a potential annual revenue
benefit of nearly $3 million in license and regisiration fees; (2) moreover, we found -

- that granting driver's licenses to this population would also reduce the number of hit-

and-runs and increase the number of insured motorists on the road and therefore
improve public safety for people accessing our state and local road infrastructure;
and (3) most importantly we found that Connecticut has the present authority under
state and federal law to issue licenses to undocumented immigrants.

In the State of Illinois, one of three states that already allow all immigrants access to
motot vehicle driver’s licenses (i.e., Washington and New Mexico are the other two)
call their new program “temporary visitor driver’s licenses.” To qualify for a
license, an applicant must prove they have lived in Iilinois for at least a year and
show that they are ineligible for a Social Security card, Documents that will be
accepled to verify identity will include-a copy of a lease, utility bills and a valid
consular identification card. Drivers must also pass vision, written and road tests
and pay a $30.00 dollar fee. In order for the license to remain valid, a driver-also
will be required to get insurance. Furthermore, people who ‘want to apply for the
license must agree to perform a facial recognition search against other databases.
Once the card is issued: (1) it will be visually different, with a blue background as
opposed to red; (2) the cards will be marked “not valid for identification” which
canngf be used for boarding an airplane, voting, or purchasing a weapon; & (3) the







licensés will only be valid for three years instead of four years, like traditional
licenses. '

This issue is very important to our agency as we have compiled data that indicates
Connecticut immigrants are currently driving without licenses due in large pait to
their immigration status and inability to apply for licenses. The collateral effect of
said restrictions forces immigrants to drive unlicensed and uninsured so they can
work and support their families. This forces immigrants to risk major financial loss
to themselves and the community at large and if continued, could result in higher
insurarice premiums for everyone. LPRAC strongly belicves that it would benefit all
state residents if immigrants were able to obtain motor vehicle driver’s licenses. This
would ensure that immigrants ate tested on the laws of the road, have their vision
checked, pay for licenses and car registration and most importantly purchase car
insurance, _

For the record, 1 would like to take a minute to highlight for the record what is the
Federal Deferred Action for Childhood Arrivals Program as highlighted by Proposed
S.B. 69 which LPRAC supports. On June 15, 2012, the Secretary of Homeland
Security announced that certain people who came to the United States as children
with parents that are undocumented and meet several key guidelines may request
consideration of deferred action for a period of two years, subject to renewal, and
would then be eligible for work authorization, Deferred action is a discretionary
determination to defer removal action of an individual as an act of prosecutorial
discretion. Deferred action does not provide an individual with lawful status. While
it is our understanding that these students are already qualified or eligible under this
program to work in Conneeticut, then in our opinion that it would make total sense
for the state to allow them to quality for a Motor Vehicle Driver’s License so that
they can get to work accordingly.

Thank you for your attention regarding this important matter to our agency. We are
ready now to answer any questions you may have regarding our statement.
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‘Good morning, and thank you for this opportunity to share our views about the Jegal issues and

economic benefits arising from issuing driver’s licenses to state residents regardloss of immigration

sfatus.

My name is Shayak Sarkar; I am a law student at Yale University and an economics Ph.D. .
student at Haivard University. For the past four months I have represented Congregations Ol'ganized for
a New Connecticut (CONECT). CONECT, an interfaith coalition of over 25 congregations, celebrated
its foundmg thls past November in the presence of thousands of congregation membets community
leaders, and elected officials including:Governor Malloy. CONECT"s platform for a new Connecticut
includes four visions, the first three of which are: making job fraining more effect-ive, ad&rcssing the
state foreclosure crisis, and improving health care insurance premiljlms. The fourth and final vision is |
for safe travel, which it_lc‘:iudes drivers licenses for immigrants regardless of status. I appear before you
today, as part of the Work and Immigrants Right Advocacy Clinic (WIRAC), on behalf of CONECT, tol

address this issue.

“The goal of my testimony is to convey our legal and economic research, which concludes first
that the State of Cm.mecticut has the present legal authority under state and federal law fo issue licenses
~ to undocumented residents. We conclude that no further statutory amendments are required for the state
to accomplish this goal. Second, I wish to describe the experience in three other states that currently

issue driver’s licenses to residents regardless of immigration status, Third and finally, I wish to share

teat, RSN
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with you our calculation of the revenue beneﬁt that Connecticut would reap by permitting Connecticut
residents to obtain a driver’s license and register their vehicle, We conclude the state would receive

nearly $3 million annually in license and registration fees,

A REAL 1))
In 2005, Congress enacted the REAT, ID Act, which addressed in part the issuance of state
| driver’s I‘icex_lses. Some staff at the Connecticut Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV) have asked
whether it would be inconsistent with the REAL ID Act to issue licenses to undocumented residents . We
conclude that the plain language of the REAL ID Act and its implementing 1'egu1aticns, issued by the US
- Department of Homeland Security, contirm that Connectiout is fully authorized in issuing hcenses
without regard to Innmgratlcn status, including under the terms of the REAL ID Act,

First, the REAL ID Act obligates states to offer its residents a driver’s license-that will meet

federal staudards for entering federal buildings, airline travel, and other purposes. We refer to this as a
“federal-purpose license” or as “REAL ID compliant license,” Comiecticut began offering such a

- license in October 2011, which the DMV calls a SelectID. In addition, the REAL D Act and s
implementing regulations recognize that a state may also issue a second form of license to il“s residents,
one whlch is not sufficient to enter federa] buildings or for other designated federal purposes, REAL ID
Act of 2005, Pub L.No. 109-13, 119 Stat. 231 (2005) (codified at 49 U.S.C. § 30301 note) (“In any
case in which the State issues a driver's license or identification card that does not satisfy the
requir ements of this section [this note], ensure that such license or identification card" both clearly
facially states it is not acceptable as federal 1D and uses a unique design or color); 6 C.ER. § 37.71
(2008) (“[s}tates that DIIS determines are compliant with the REAL ID Act that choose o alsc issue
driver's licenses and ldentiﬁcatlon CﬂIdS that are not acceptable by Federal agencies for official puiposes
must ensure that such driver's hcenses and identification cards” meet the requirements of § 202 (d)
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(11).); see also 73 Fed. Reg. 5273-74 .(—Jan. 29, 2008) (“The Act also permits a State otherwise in
compliance with the Act to issue driver's licenses and identification cards that do not conform to the
Act's requirements. See Sec. 202(d)(11).”); 73 Fed. Reg, 5323 (Jan. 29, 2008) (“This Regulatory
Evaluation assumes that States will deploy a two-tier or multi-tier licensing system.”). We refer to this
as a “regular license.” Connecticut also offers these regular licenses to ifs residents, but on terms more
restrictive tﬁan federal or state law mandates. In particular, Connecticut has elected not to exercise its
power under federal and state statute to issue regular licenses to undocumented residents.

Second, DHS has repeatedly delayed implementation of the federal statute, in parf: due to .
technical cha]lenges and in part to sustained opposmon to the law from many states. It is far from clear
that REAL ID will ever take effect. Agam howeve1 our main pomt is that even if REAL ID doe:s ever
take effect, it in no way prohibits Connecticut from issuing license w1th0ut regard to immigration status.
This is because nothing in the text of the REAL ID Act or in DIIS’s implementing regulations prohibits
a state ﬁ'oﬁ offering a second license to undocumented immigrants as well, one that satisfies state
standards but which may dcpart ﬁom the federal 1ules governing REAL ID-compliant licenses.

A two-tier licensing system, as in the SelectCT program, is permissible under the federal law. In
| fact, to reiterate, the final rule regarding the minimum standards for REAL ID promulgated in 2008
assumed that states could implement two-tier identification and/or licensing systems: “States that DHS
determines are combliant with thé REAL ID ACT that choose to also issue driver’s licenses and
identification cards that are not acceptable by Federal agencies for- official purposes” must simply make

sure those non-REAL ID compliant TDs must state their invalidity for federal identification purposes on



the face of thfa I and possess a “unique design or éolor indicator.” The statute itself also explicitly
afﬁrms the acceptabiiity of such a system contingent only on the same two requirements.?

lOn October 3, 2011, CLmnecticut implemented a two-tier licensing system. Connecticut now
offers a “Select ID,” which is REAL ID-compliant and therefore should be-acc'epted by federal officials
aftér January 15, 20132 One component of the Select ID application process is to verify legal presence;
. however, the document checklist explvicates “If length of legal presem;e is unknown or e?xpires before a-
full license term [6 years], the applicant is not qualified for a verified driver license or 1D card* The
state therefore cannot pl'ospectively issue driver’s licenses to people without immigration status under
SelcthT. Moreover even tﬁose v;rith Atel'nporary legal presence are excluded. The seven countrics that
tho Secretary of Homeland Security has designated with temporary protected status (TPS)” have
scheduled expiration dates in or before 2013, Thu-s, since TPS will be expiring in less than six years, we
do not predict that peopie under TPS will be able to meet the legal presence requirement under
SelectCT. - |

Howevet, as authorized by the federal regulation, Connecticut has chosen to continue fo offer
non-REAT, ID licenses as well, but only to those seeking to renew their licenses not new apl')lican‘[s.6
The new “Select ID” program is cu_rrently only a DMV policy and ié not governed by regulation.‘
Changes to its administration are at the discretion of Commissioner Currey. Thus simply by changing
the DW regulations, undocumented immigrants may gain access to driver’s licenses and this should

not conflict with federal law, REAL ID does not prohibit this; rather, it mandates that states must offer a

"6 CF.R. § 37.71 (2008).

*REAL D Act of 2005, § 202(d)(11) (2005). )

. 2 Select CT ID Overview, CT DEP'T MOTOR VEHICLES, h_ttp:l/mvw.ct.qov/dmv/cw::n/view.asp‘?a=4078&q=477742.
* Document Checklist Jor Identity Verification, CT DEP’T MOTOR VEHICLES, '

* These countries are Bl Salvador, Haiti, Honduras, Nicaragua, Somalia, Sudan, and South Sudan,

S DMV 10 Change License and ID Renewal Process Jor All Customers, CT DEP'T MOTOR VEHICLES,

by

httD:l/www.ct.govfdmvfc\m/view.asn?a=4078&q.=#}u7\zﬂ-7§0. . WA




REAL ID-compliant license. CT fulfills the federal ma_ndate and violates no law by choosing to offera

. ﬁo-tiered scheme that includes a non-REAL 1D compliant license. |
In addition to excludiné undocuinented immigrants from the abiliiy to obtain REAL-ID

compliant driver’s licenses that are valid as federal ID, the REAL ID Act’s requfrements exclude soine

with legal ilﬁnligration statuses including persons gran'ted withholding of removal, persons paroled info -
 the United States, and applicants for nonimmig‘rant visas (e.g. ?ictims of trafficking or other crimes).”
Furthermore, REAL ID raiscs serious concerns for fawful immigrants because their status must be
'veriﬁed by SAVE (Systematic Alien Verification for Entitlements), a Department-of Homeland Security
database with documented deficiencies® In short, the federal law, if it ever takes effect, will require
Connecticut to issue a REAL ID-compliant license. Since Connecticut began offering such a license as
of October 2011, the state i.s fully in complianéé almost 1.5 years in advance of the current effective
date.

The deadline for full compliance with REAL ID is now January 15, 2013; but the deadline has -
coﬁsistenﬂ)'f been delayed, When REAL ID was passed in 2005, it was scheduled to tai(e full effect in .
May 11, 2008, But there was an enormous wave of oxI'itioism from states across the country. In 2008,
‘when the Department of Homeland Secin'ity promulgated the ﬂnai rule governing minimum standards -
for REAL ID compliance, then-Secretary Chertoff extended the date until May 11, 2011. Then again,

" on March 7, 2011, the Department of Homeland Security promulgated an additional regulation
extending the full compliance date for REAL ID to J anuary 15, 2013.° |

So while the statute iiself set an effective date of May 11, 2008 (three years after enactment), it

appears that the Secretary of Homeland Security has authorized co_inpliance deadline extensions beyond

7 Joau Friedland, Final REAL ID Regulations Fail to Ease New Burdens.on Immigranis, NAT'L IMMIGRATION LAW CTR.
gFeb. 27, 2008), hitp://v201 1L.nilc.org/immspbs/DLs/DL039 htm.
Id T



that date. The statute giyes the Secretary the power to “determine whether a, State is meeting the
requitements of [tﬁe Act].” Furthermore, the statute explicitly grants the Secretary the authority to
extend the deadline for full compliance for states so long as they “provide adequate justification for
noncompliance.”

Based on these extensions and the strong opposition to REAL ID from some states and sectors of
the community, as well as the costs of the program, some argue that the implementation of REAL ID is
-Iikely to be extended again and might ultimately be repealed. Since the Secreutary of Homeland Security
appears 1o have the authority to extend the deadline through regulation (and thus without Congressional
approvatl), extension may be more likely, especially if President Obama is re-elected.

Lastly, in Connecticut, the restriction limiting access to state driver’s licenses to those residents

with lawful status in the United States derive;s from an agency regulation rather than a statute, The
.statu?e governing driver’s license abplicaﬁon states only that each applicant must “in the discretion of . !
the commissioner, file, with the application, a copy of such applicant’s birth certificate or other prima i
facie evideﬁcé of date of birth and evidence of identity.” ICc:)nn. Gen. Stat. § 14-36(e)(2).
The proof of status requirement is part of the Department of Motor Vehicle’s own regulations. -
Conn. Agencies Regs, § 14-137-64a provides that an applicant for a driver’s license or identity card “be ‘
required to inclicate;, whether he is a citizen of the United States.... If any applicant indicates that he is not
" a citizen. .., the applicant shall be required to submit evidence that he is legally present in the United
States and is a lawful resident of the State of Connecticut.” Even ifa person submits such evidence, the
DMV can decline to issue a license or identity card to a person currently in removal proceedings or

subject to an outstanding warrant, Id. § 14-137-64a(c). Further, the DMV can revoke a license or

? The DMV has a list of acceptable documents for noncitizens on its w.ebsite. See Acceptable Identification for Non-U.S. -
Citizens, CT Dep’t Mator Vehicles, http:wwv.ct.eov/dmviewp/view.asp?=805&q-47145 6.




identity card if it learns that a person is no longer permitted to be in the United States; in that case, the

petson must be allowed an opportunity for a hearing. J A

B. EXPERIENCE IN OTHER STATES
Three- states—Utah, Washington, and New Mexico—continue to make driver’s licenses (or
something simiiar) available to undocumented immigrants.“'
1. UTAH
Priér {o 2005, undocumented immigrants had access to driver’s licenses in Utah. In 2005, the
state enacted a lawful presence requirement for state driver’s licenses.”? Towever, at the same time,

Utah created a “driving privilege card” that is available regardless of proof of lawful status in the United

19 A dditional regulations provide that an applicant for a driver’s license must provide proof of identity, Conn. Agencics Regs
§8 14-137-165, 14-137-67. The documents sufficient fo prove identify are closely associated with U.S. citizenship or lawful
stafus. Jd. ‘There is also a requirement that an applicant for a license or state identity card provide a social securify number or . -
statement of non-eligibility. See Conu. Agencies Regs. §§ 1-1h-4(identity cards), 14-137-79a (licenses and identity cards);
Acceptable Forms of Identification, CT Dep’t Motor Vehicles, hitp:/fwww.ct.eov/dmvicwp/view.asp?=8058q-471456
(licenses and identity cards), :

1 Unforlunately, that number of such states has dwindled steadily in recent years, especially in response to the REAL ID Act
(discussed below). Since 2008, six states have eliminated eligibility of undocumented immigrants for state driver’s licenses.
Only two states, Washington and New Mexico, continue to issue driver’s licenses to those without lawful status on the same
terms as those with lawful status. In Utah, undocumented immigrants are eligible to obtain only “driving privilege cards,”
which are not intended to serve as valid identification for government purposes. Therefore, Utah has essentially created two |
tiers of driver's licenses. In each of these states, legislation to climinate undocumented immigranis® eligibility for driver's
licenses has been introduced and/or considered in 2011. All other states impose alawful status reguirement either by statute,
agency regulation, or the combination of documents required for driver’s licenses in the state, As of 2009, twenty-eight
states fell in the former category (statute) and eighteen fell in the latter (policy). ' :

12 5005 Utah Laws Ch. 20 (S.B.227).




States."”® “The card gives the holder the right to drive but expliciﬂy stafes on its face that it is not a valid
form of government identification and should not be used for that purpose, 12 |

Since the passage of Utah’s law in 2005, tl;ere have been 1'el;eated efforts to repeal it, In March
2011, a bill to repeal the driving privilege card provisions was introduced. That bill was unsuccessful,
yet a bill that creates additional hurdles to obtain the driving privilege card replaced it. That bill, which
Wwas enacted, requires a-person applying for a driver;s privilege card to submit to fingerprints and a
criminal background check, at the applicant’s ex-pelrlse.’3 Those requirements went into effeet on July 1,
2011.

.2, WASHINGTON

Unlike Utah, Washington does not differentiate between the driver’s licenses issued to those who -
can prove lawful status and those who cannot. The Senate i Washington considered several different
licensing bills in March 2011, some of which would have created a system similar to Utah’s, others'that
would have eliminated access t6 driver’s licenses entirely for those without lawful status. However, the
bill that came to a vote on March 7, 2011 failed in a 25-23 vote. 14 |

3. NEW MEXICO

13 As of new rules effective October 3, 2011, Connecticut also has a two-tiered system. Connecficut is offering new REAL
1D compliant IDs (Select CT s), which are not available fo tany immigrants including legal immigrants who cannot
demonstrate they will have lawful status for the coming six years, However, Connecticut is also continuing to issue regular
licenses under the rules discussed above int this memorandum. There are two important differences between the Comnecticut

licenses in Connecticut. Second; the lower tier of licenses in Connecticut can still serve as valid state identification (although
not for federal purposes after REAL ID becomes effective). The Select ID two-tier system is discussed in more detail below.,
"> I The statute stipulates that the driving privilege card must stato, ““FOR DRIVING PRIVILEGES ONLY-NOT
VALID FOR IDENTIFICATION,” or something substautially similar, Utah Code Ann. § 53-3-207. There are obvious
drawbacks to this approach. When a similar law.was implemented in Tennessee in the past, problems included: deterrence of
immigrant applications for fear of being reported, waste of enforcement resources when police officers were forced {o arrest
individuals without “valid identification” upon citation, and improper deputization of driver’s license officials to act as
immigration officials in determining lawful status. Nonetheless, it does provide a route for undocumented individuals to drive
within the confines of state law. . :

2011 UT S.B. 138 (NS); see also Lisa Riley Roche, Fingerprints, background check now required for Utah driver
privilege card, DESERETNEWS, June 30, 2011, htip hwww deseretnews.com/article/7053755 02/Fingerprints-background-
check-now-reguni red-for-Utab-driver-privilege-card.himl, '

“ Keegan Hamilton, With fhe Driver’s License Bill Dead, Washington Tmmnigrants Get to Keep Their IDs, SEATTLE WEEKLY,

Mar. 8, 2011, hltp://b]ogs.sealtleweeklv.com!dailvweeklyQOIlli)ﬂdrivgx's license Dbill: dead washington immigranis.php,




Similar to Washington, New Mexico currently allows immigrants without proof of legal status to
access driver’s licenses on equal terms with other residents of that state. The law extending access to
undocumented immigrants was passed in 2003."° Recently, the issue hals been very contentious in the

legislature. The issue has béen central to Repul;lipan Gm-rernor Susan# Martinez who wishes to repeal
the 2003 law. A bill to repeal the 2003 law was introduced last winter, passed the House of
Representatives, but failed in the Senate.'® The sponsor plahﬁed to reintroduce the bill this September,
but at the last minute, he stated did not have the votes to bypass commitice and pass it in the House."”
Under tl-le hostile administration, the application px"o,cess has tightened, and _the Houston Chronicle
reported that new immigrant licenses dropped 57% during the first seven indnt_hs of the new Governor’s
administration.’ In August 2011, the Governor ordered the state to re-verify the residence of all foreign
lle;tionals ﬁith New Mexico driver’s licenses. A federal district judge, in an action brought by MALDEE
challenging the program, has preliminarily enjoined that order."

" These three states, Utah, Waéhington, and New Mexico, thus continue to offer driver®s licénses
to undocumented populations, and while effm.'ts to repeal those rights have surfaced, they have largely
been defeated. |

C.  REVENUE BENEFITS
Ovbrall, we estimate, as a lower bouhd, that the state of Connecticut could gal;n ﬁearly $3 million

annnally in revenue from extending licenses and registrations to undocumented immigrants: $2.16

¥ 2003 New Mexico Laws Ch. 31 (ILB. 173)

16 Milan Simonich, Driver’s license bill is dead, sponsor says, ALAMOGORDO DAILY NEWS, Sept 24,2011,
http:/fwww.alamogordonews.com/ci 18967305,

Y Id., See also Gustavo Valdes, New Mexico slated to consider changes o immigrant driver’s licenses, CNN, Sepl.6, 2011,
http:/articles.cnn.com/2011-09-06/us/new.mexico.immigrants.license_1_undocumented-immigrants-license-issue-judge-
sarah-singleton? s=PM:US.

® Barry Massey, Immigrant Licenses Slowing in NM, HOUSTON CHRONICLY, Sept. 14, 2011,
hitp:/fwww.chron.com/newsfarticle/ APNewsBreak-Immigrant-licenses-slowing-in-NM-2170518.php.

¥ Judge blocks NM governor on immigrant driver s licenses, Sept. 1, 2011, RBUTERS,
- hitp://www.renters.com/article/2011/09/01/us-newmexice-licenses-immigrants-idUSTRE7800AV20110901.



million a year in car registregtion; revenue and $624,000 in driver’s license fees,?® To estimate the
potential revenue at stake necessitates estimating first, the number of cars unregistered but owned by
undoctlmellted immigrants and second, ’[he. number of undocumented drivers (who we assume will
obtain a ficense once aVailai)le).

To first estimate the number of cars uneegistered but owned by undocumented immigrants, we
can look to an inferesting experiment, a recént Ohio statutory change, Ohio revised its laws in 2009 to
require an owner’s social security number, driver’s license number, or state identiﬁcation number. After
the change, the Ohio Bm:eau of Motor Vehicles sent letters warning individuals that their reéisfrations
would be canceled unless they produced the newly required documents.”! Due to the mare stringent

(=Y

identification redllh'emellts, Ohio identiﬁed those registrations not in compliance and allowed for three
months for individuals to update their 1'egisti'ation. Only a small fraction complied; about 45,000 |
1'qgistrations were cancelled in a state with 12 million registered vehicles, which we can assume to be the
number of vehicles owned by undocumented drivers at that time in Ohio.”® If we assume the ratio of
vehicles owned by tﬁe undocumented to the overall undocumented population is equal across states, we
then estimate 54,000 unregisiered -vehicle;s owned by undocumented immig'rants in CT, based on
:estimates from the Pew Research Center.? This figure is larger than that for Ohio because while the

overall population of Ohio is larger than that of Connecticnt, Connecticut’s estimated undocumented

population exceeds that of Ohio.

2 Theye are potentiat additional revenue gains from docnmented immigrants who are nonetheless ineligible for SelectCT
including those under Temporary Protected Status and those on sfudent visas. - .

*! Reginald Fields, Latino Group Sues Ohio says new vehicle registration rules unfair to non-citizens; state disagrees, THE -
PLAIN DEALER, Nov. 24, 2009,

*2 Fields, supra. ' :
? Pew Research Center, hitp://www.pewhispanic.ore/201 1/02/01/unauthorized~immigrant-p' opulation-brnational-and-state-
trends-2010/, p. 23. This data suggests a ratio of 6/5 between the number of undocumented immigrants in Connecticut to the
number in Ohio. R e




~ To calculate the number of undocumented drivers, we have a secqnd assumption of assuming the
ratio of overall vehicle'registrations to licensed drivers in the state of Connecticut (.96)** ap'plies to the
utfdocumented, unlicensed driver communify. Thig would give about 52,000 _drivers: This is likely
conservative since the :‘sooioeconomi(; demographfcs of the undocumented don}lnunjty would suggest
that more drivers share cars than in the; general population, Nonetheless the estimates of 54,000
unregistered vehicles and about 52,000 drivers, when combined with the annual vehicle registration fee
and driver’s license fees in Comlecticut-suggest $2.16 million in registration revenue and $624,000 in
annual driver’s license fee, for a total of $2,784,000.2 ' .

We also have not inolude-d the $40 DMV examination fee, since we assume the marginal cos;t of
actually administering a dﬂving test is somewhat high so the nef revenue here may be close to zero (the
sum of the DMV exam fees would be over $2 million ahnually). The additio-nal DMYV examinations
might well support t_hc hiring of additional DMV exalminers to review the increaséd applications. But
again, our estimate is conservative to make a point, Moreover, our estimates also do not include the
possible economid_ stimulus from promoting car puréhases from Connecticut dealers and ‘l'eiated
autoﬁobile mﬁintenance and.accessory costs, if Peo.ple’,s inclination to purchase automobiles responds
posi'tively to registration avaﬂab‘ilit;c And even more broadly. speaking, there will Iikely be large social
gains to enabling people to have more mobility in their job searches, which would rectiﬁ,; market
inefficiencies.

D. CONCLUSION

In conclusion; WIRAC’s research for CONECT demonstrates that providing licenses to

immigrants regardless of documentation status is not only legal but economically beneficial. First, the

4 UJS Department of Transporiation, Federal Highway Administraiion,
<hitp:/fwww.fhwa.dot.gov/policyinformation/statistics/2009/d1c.0fim>,

25 Ag of July 1, 2011, a 2 year car regisiration is set at $80 for Connecticut and 7 year driver’s license costs $84, suggesting
. annual costs of $40 and $12 per year for registrations and licenses respectively,



plain Janguage of REAL ID and DHS’s implementing 1egulat10ns confirm that Conuecticut is fully
authorized in 1ssumg licenses to immigrants, provided only that the state also issue a REAL ID-
compliant license - which it does. Second, nothing in Connecticut’s own statutes prohibits the DMV
from issuing licenses and 1‘egi§t1‘ation to l'esiden’rs.regardless of innmgl'ation status. The obstacle is
mer cly a DMV regulation and policy. Third, REAL ID’s pelslstent delays suggest it may never go into
effect, and if it does; the statute does not prechuje a two-tier system, where regular driver’s licenses
which are nét valid for federal ID can be issued. This is in fact Connecticut’s current policy, and by
regulation, it can expand access to all immigranfs, instead of simply 1'§serving it for license renewal.
Fourth, states like Utah, New Mexico, and ‘-Nashington offer concrete examples of this capacit)-r.
Finally, the economic revenue benefits, even when (':ons;ervatively estimated, are éigniﬁ_cant - we
suggest that the state will reap an additionf;l $3 million in revenue,

i would be happy to try to answer any further queétions you inight have, . I thank the Commission

for the opportunity to present qur testimony.




The Jerome N. Frank Legal Services Otganization

YALE LAW SCHOOL
Query 1: What forms of identification do Washington, Utah, and New Mexico require

before issuing driver’s licenses to undocumented immigrants;?
Washington
For those who do not possess a social security nﬁmber, proof of identity can be demonsirated
-through a declaration form and a number of documents inéluding (but not limited to):!
| a) Guatemala Consulate ID car<‘:l
b) Marriage license or certificate (f-iled‘ with the county)
c) Mecllicare card
- d) Mexican Matl'icpia Consular Card
e) Mexican Federal Electoral Card‘issued 1991 or later -
f) Mexican school record with a seal and your photo at the age'when issued
Utah
For Utah’s Driving Privilege Card, one must provide, in the absence of a social security‘number,
an Individual Tax Identification Number (ITIN), a completed fingerprint card, and evidence of identity. |
The evidence of identity requires a foreign birth certificate or foreign passport including a certified -
translation if the document is not in English and one of the following:” |
a) Church records
b) Courtrecords
c) Dri\{er license

- d) Employee ID

1 Proof of Identity, Washington State Department of Licensing,
http:/ /www.dol.wa.gov/driverslicense/idproof html#identity (last visited ]an 20, 2012).

2 Positive Identification, Utah Department of Public Safety,
http: //pliblicsafety.utah.gov/dld/acceptable_id. html#DPC . (last visited Jan. 20, 2012)
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e) Insurance ID card
f) Mexican Matricula Consular Card (issued in Utah)
g) Mexican Voter Registration card
h) School records
i) Utah-Driving Privilege Card
i} Other evidence considered acceptable by the Division Director or designee
" New Mexico
If one is not eligible for a sociél security card, one of the following is necessary to establish
identity:® |
| a) Mexican Matricula Consular card issued a.fter Febrouary i, 2005 by the Consulate in A}buquerque
or Fl Paso plus an original or cer_tific;,d copy of a foreign birth certificate vﬁth a notarized English
translation |
b) Valid passport issued by a country of citizenship plus an original or certified copy of a foreign
birth certificate with & notarized English translation _
¢) Individual '_I‘ax Identification Number (ITIN) card or letter issued by t‘.he IRS issuing the ITIN plus
~ either a Mexican Matricola Consular issued after- 2/1/05 by the Consulate in Albuguerque or El Paso

or by a valid passport issued by the applicant country of citizenship

Query 2: What are the some of the documented deficiencies yith SAVE (Systematic Alien .
Verification for Entitlements), the verification system vsed by REAL ID?

Two main complaints have emerged: 4

3 MVD Proof of Identification Number, New Mexico Motor Vehicles Department, -
http:/ /www.aisdnewmexico.gov/Drivers/ Licensing/pages/MVD-Proof-of-Identification-
Number.aspx (last visited Jan. 20, 2012}. P '






1. “In a survey conducted iay the American Association of Motor Vehicle Administrators, staff at

departments of motor vehicles (DMVs) who currently use SAVE v;rere critical of delays, of the fact that
| often it was necessary to contact U.S. Citizenship and Immigration Services additional times when |

attempting to obtain a ve;-ification, and of the unavailability and unreliability of SAVE-related data.”®
2. “The Social Security Administration (SSA), which must verify noncitizen. applicants’ immigration

status before issuing them Social Security numbers (SSNs), has complained that it often eXiJeriences -

significant delays in obtaining verifications through SAVE and sometimes receives no response at all. "

4Joan Friedlénd, Final REAL ID Regulations Fail to Ease New Burdens on Immigrants, NAT'L, IMMIGRATION LAW CTR. (Feb,
27, 2008), http:/fv201 1nilc.org/immspbs/DLs/DL039.htm.
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State of Connecticut

Latino and Puerto Rican
- Affairs Commission

Memorandum

To; Latino and Puerto Rican Affairs Commission S

From: Carlos Candal, Chairman of the Priorities and Legislation Committee L

Date: May 16, 2012 -

Re:  Potential Economic & Public Safety Benefits of Issuing Driver’s Licenses to
all immigrants in Connecticut Preliminary Findings ‘ '

The Priorities and Legislation Commitiee has conducted a year long research about the
potential economic & public benefits for the State of Connecticut to issue driver’s licenses
to- all ‘immigrants in Connccticut with the collaboration of State Representative Juan
Candelaria (95th District), Barbara Richards, a LPRAC Consultant, and onr committee
members Rick Cruz, Lourdes Montalvo, Isaias Diaz, Werner Oyanadel and 1. The research
involved review of pertinent data resources, commitiee meetings,-and a fact finding hearing .
with interviews from executives from the State Department of Motor Vehicles, the Office of
Legislative Research, and the State Department of Public Safety. Pinally, the committee
received written testimony from a team of researchers on this subject from Yale Law
School. : : -

Tt is within this context that the committee reports to LPRAC the conclusion of our
preliminary investigation as follows: (1) there is a potential revenue benefit for the State of
Connecticut by allowing Connecticut immigrants regardless of their immigration status
obtain a driver’s license and register their vehicle. We found that the State would potentially -
receive nearly $3 million annvaily in license and registration fees; (2) the. State of
Connecticut, according to the Jerome N. Frank Legal Services Organization at Yale Law
School, has the present legal authority under state and federal law to issue licenses fo
undocumented residents; and (3) we found that granting driver’s licenses to undocumented
immigrants would reduce the number of hit-and-runs and increase the number of insured
motorists on-the road and therefore increasing public safety for everyone in o state. More
than 14 pexcent of all accidents are caused by uninsured drivers, resulting in $4.1 billion in
insurance losses a year, according to the AAA Foundation for Traffic Safety. It is our
contention that Congress needs to fix our broken immigration system. However, state
policymakers need to make sure that all their drivers are tested, licensed, and insured by
jmplementing a policy that protects everyone’s safety.

Therefore, the members of the Priorities and Legislation Committee respectfully requests .
from LPRAC to approve our report and recommendations in order to legifimize our future
legislative advocacy and additional research regarding this issue before the Connecticut
General Assembly.
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1
2
3
4 MR. DIAZ: T will call this Fact Finding
5 Hearing to order. My name is Isaias Diaz. I am the Chairman of
6 the Latino and Puerto Rican Affairs Commission, and I will be
7 filling in in the interim for our Sub-Committee Chair, Attorney
é Carlos Candal, who was himself along with a couple of other
9 handlers are stuck in traffic due to an .automobile accident.
10 The purpose for this Fact Finding Hearing is
11 that we're trying to make an internal investigation, so to speak
12 and collect research regarding potential economic and public
13 safety benefits to issuing drivers' licenses to undocumented
14 people here in the State of Connecticut. For the Latino and
15 Puerto Rican Affairs Commission to make a new recommendation to
16 the Legislature or even to the Board cause this is an accounting
i7 that will reach the Board level, We need to do our homework
18 first, so to speak, so that's why we invited everybody here
19 today based on the various areas of expertise and your valuable
20 and input that you could bring to the table.
21 30 before we begin, I'd just like to let
22 everybody know that by law we are conducting a Fact Finding
23 Hearing, the statute requires that that we report. it. Don't
24 worry, it's nothing crazy, we're just having a discussion, just
25 you know it is required by law we're supposed to report it, so I
26 have to give you (inaudible).
27 I'd like Eo just go around the room real guick

Brandon Smiith Reporting & Video
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i real quick and have everyone introduce themselves., We'll start
2 from (inaudible).
3 My name is Montez Montalvo (phonetic
4 spelling). I am also a Commissioner with the Latino and Puerto
5 Rican Affairs Commission.
6 . My name is Werner Oyanadel, I'm the Acting
7  Executive Director of LPRAC.
8 ~ David Rosado (phonetic spelling) from the
9 . Department of Emergency Services. and Public Protection. I'm
10 here on behalf of the Commissioner Ouda Golli {phonetic
11 spelling).
12 Lynn Blackwell, I work at the Department of
13  Motor Vehicles and I'm respbnsible for the Bureau of Driver
14 Regulatons, and I had some comments to deliver to you.and I1'll
15 -explain what I do when T get to the podium,
16 I'm Janet Reynolds, I also work at the
17 Department of Motor vehicles, the Customer Operations Bureau, so
18 we obviously branch out our issues, that's why we're here.
19 i'm Baibara Richards, I'm a Professor at
20 Housatonic Community College in Bridgeport. I volunteer.
21 I (inaudible) State Tuition, (inaudible)
22 Richard Cruz from Bridgeport, I've just been
23 elected the Vice Chair, and {inaudible) .
24 And I'm Isaias Diaz, I'm the Chair of the
25 .Latinq and Puerto Rican Affairs Commission and I also practice
26 law here in the City of Hartford.
27 Before we move on to the next portion of our
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‘for Connecticut's effort to comply with real ID, which we call

Page b
agenda, it's come to my attention that the D.M.V., Commissioner
(inaudiblei passed away, 50 on Behalf of the Latino and Puerto
Rican Affairs Commission, we extend our condolences,

Without any further ado, Miss Blackwell.

MS. BLACKWELL: Okay, and I hope you'll bear
with me what our program is a little complicated. Anything DMV
does is Complicaﬁed, cause we're a creature of the law, 50 we
try to comply with Federal Law, State Law and Regulations., My
discussion takes about ten or fifteen minutes and I think you'll
find it helpful. I hope so. | So
my thanks for giving us this opportunity to speak before. you.

My name is like I said, Lynn Blackwell, I'm a
Division Chief at Connecticut DMV, My responsibilities include

driver regulation and I was responsible as the Project Manager

Select CT ID.

What I wanted to do today was give you some
context about Select CT ID and how it affects immigrant access
to Connecticut Driver Licenses and non-driver IDs.

| Sometimes I call ID's, DO'S, Credentials,
Cards, we use all that terminology. And then if you don't.mind.
you gave us four questions, I'll respond to those at the end
because I think that my answers might make more sense hopefully.

S0 last year October 3rd, we adopted the
Select CT ID Program and it made significant changes as to how
we issue drivers' licenses. These changes are, I think, my

comments will explain this, but all these changes are beneficial
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1 to non-U.5. citizen customers, and deépite somea miﬁperceptions
2 about the real IP, I think you will be pleasantly surprised by
3 how we designed and adopted the program, so a real ID is a fact
4 act and was adopted by Congresé after the terrorism attacks on
5 09/11.
6 License integrity was only one of their
- recommended actions, it's the one that relates to DMV, so it's
8 the one I know the most about. Our effort to comply ﬁith real
9 ID was partiallf because it was good policy and then I'll
10 confess to you that the other reason to adopt real ID is -that
11 DMV received Federal funds in the amount of
12 about $1.3 million dollars and with that we got all new P.C.'s,
i3 all new scanners, and modern servers for our computers, faster
14 card printers. We trained our employees with fraudulent
“15 document recognition training which we previously did not have
16 the funding to do.
117 Generally we operated Connecticut's driver
18 license issuance production process. As part of the
19 introduction of Select CT ID, before we introduced it, we ran
220 ads on the radio in order to make sure that our customer base
21 was aware of the changes, that if‘they wanted to verilfy they had
722 to bring their ID in,
23 | We also met with some organizations who had
24 opposed the real ID and had concerns about real ID |
25 implementation, and our message to those organizations and our
26 message to you'today is that the Select CT ID Program was
27 designed Lo be as éxpansive and inclusive of the State's
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1 immigrant community as possible while still maintaining
2 compliance with the real ID and the integrity and high security
3 of our licensing system which is over—reaéhing goal.
4 So I want to give you a little bit of history
5 about that integrity commitment that bMV has to issuing '
6 licenses. Our main concerns include minimizing identity theft
7 would cost people a lot of money if their identity is stolen.
8 We also want to control internal fraud. The
9 DMV in the last, hmmm, I guéss it's almost ten years ago, but we
10 had a case of internal fraud that ended up with six people being
11 fired and several of them ending up in jail for long periods of
12 time, and so controlling internal progress is something that we
13 have as a high priority.
14 We want.to also do the réal ID goal which is
15 improving national security. With the Real ID Act what Congress
16 did is and it's very similar to what every legislature does when
17 they're looking at legislation and trying to decide how to crack
18 that legislation,;they do a search of the literature and figure
19 out who is knowledgeable, what organization or what interest has
20 already done work on it, and in this case Congress found that
21 the Association, that is an Association of DMV's, it's called
22 AAMVA, American, I never get this right. I have it written
23 down, American Association of Motor Vehicle Administrators
24 AAMVA.
25 People in my position in the fifty states have
26 gotten together and they had over a time, over years, developed
21 | best practices for issuing credentials in a secure way. What
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1 Congress did was adopt a lot of those best practices in the real
2 ID. So when people, I guess when there are concerns about Real
3 ID, BMV never felt that those Real ID requirements were
4 overreaching because they were things that camé out of our
-5 industry. They were best practices that we were already working
6 toward adoptiﬁg.
i But the Real ID said, here's a time line, and if you adopt it
8 these are the benefits that you can get for doing it. It wasn't
9 a directive. It's an incentive to the states to adopt.
10 50 some of those best practices are reqhiring
11 . us to take a photo of every applicant, and what that does is now
12 we take a photo up front and that's where if a person is coming
13 in to apply we take a photo of every applicant. It used to be
14- we'd only take a photo of successful applicants. The reason or
15 the photo up front is if somebody comes in and gives us
16 . fraudulent documents, if we realize they have fraudulent
17 documents and they run away, we have their photo. And so we're
" 18 able to give that photo to Taw Enforcement to see if there is a
19 prosecution that can occur.
20 Bnother best practice is verifying documents,
21 identity documents with whoever issued that document, so that
22 would be like Social Security for a Social Security Card, we
23 verify Social Security with SSA. Another example is USCIs, if a
24 document has been issued by USCIS, we verify with themn.
25 In the future there will be some other
26 verifications éystems that are set up. They don't all exist
27 vetl.,
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1 One other best practice is background checks
2 on new and existing employees because what we don't want to do
3 is hire people without being aware that they may have had a past
4 criminal practice of (inaudible), actﬁally the Real ID's concern
5 is crimes against the government also.
6 We no longer photocopy identity documents.
7 The best practice and we've adopted it is that we scan identity
g8 documents and they're stored in an accredited secure form, so
9 they're not available for misuse, that's also an identity
10 protection effort. |
11 And the final thing is that by verifying your
12 Social Security, we are actually improving the Social Security
13 Administration Data Base, because we often say it's our efforts
14 that is aéhieving an improvement in the reliability of the .
15 Social Security System because they have .a lot of duplicates,
16 they actually issued the same Social Security Number to the same
17 . people and we're helping- them figure that out.

- 18 Now-back to us generally and my next group of
16 comments are really about the Select CT 1ID. The first thing I
20 . want to say about Seiect CT ID is it doesn't represent a huge
21 change for Connecticut's customers, other than the renewing
22 customers, people that were already customers before October
23 3rd, 2011 and I say that because every credential that issue,

24 every credential that has been issued for a loné time is based
25 on secure identity and legal presence. When I use legal

26 presence what I mean is a person who is non-U.S. citizen, who is
27 present in this country and is documented to be present at this

Branden Smith Reporting & Video

860-549-1850 production@brandonreporting.com 249 Pearl Street



Fact Finding Hearing

1/18/2012 T ‘ Transcription
Page 10

1 time.

2 MR. CANDELARIA: All done. That (inaudible)

3 traffic,

4 MR. DIAZ: For the record, that's State

5  Representative Juan Candelaria, has just arrived.

6 MS3. BLACKWELL: Hi, how are you? So nice to

7 see you.

8 MR. CANDELARIA: Same here.

9 MS. BLACKWELL: The Select CT ID Program at
10 DMV is not a big change to our standards because we've always
11 had the high standards so reguiring people to prove their
i2 identity and prove that they're legally present and I believe
13 the presence means that they are in this country, have a Visa
14 and that USCIS recognizes their status as being heré legally.
5 . So we‘work diligently to, to I studied the
i6 real idea for a few yeafs before we implemented. We weren't
17 quite sure how to go about implemeriting it, A lot of effort
18 went into figuring out how to implement in a way that was as
19 fair to our existing 2.9 million customers as possible.

20 We think what we came up with was pretty

21 innovative and what we did is minimize the impact on existing
22 customers, whose legal presence may have changed since they

23 obtained their credentials; and what we did not want to do is
24 require the everybody in the State to get a verified Real ID,
25 because if we aid that there would be a lot of people who

26 wouldn't qualify, and we suspected that there might be people
27 who had licenses that had legal presence when they applied but
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1 when they were coming back for renewal they no longer had legal
2 presence cause that could be a fleeting thing. You can be here
3 for a short period of time, and so, I'm going to say this a
4 couple of times but when people already have a driver's license
5 card ID in Connecticut they come into renew, as long as they
6 don't ask for a verified, they are going to be able to renew
7  just 1liké I can by coming in and and turning it in for a new
8 License, as long as they don't ask for a verified.
9 So Connecticut requires new non-U.S. citizen
10 applicants to be legally present in the United States and we
11 verified that with USCIS. There are two types of credeﬁtials
12 under this Select CT IDb, The real idea allows states to allow
i3 two different types of qredentials one can be real ID compliant
14 and the other a non-compliant option. Both of Connecticut's
15 driver license ID's, both these compliant and the non-compliant
16 are designed and intended to continue to have the integrity and
17 - reputation for high standards across the country, so they're
18 acceptable as reliable ID wherever you go, inside the State,
19 cutside the State, whether you are at iour;bank, you're trying
20 to cash a check at a retail store.
21 So to achieve the highest level of
22 flexibility that I talked about but also maintain the
23 reliability that we had always had, we decided to issue two
24 types of credentials, and I have a hand-out which I carefully
25 removed, what did I do with 1it? Oh, thank you.
26 You've been enormcusly helpful.
21 Take a look, those are the same so you can
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1 pass one out and those two pages are exactly the same. They
2 show the two different credentials; one is on the top and one is
3 on the bottom, so the, lést my place, thé non—-compliant one
4 which is the easiest to get by people renewing, so if you're
5 renewing, you come in and say, just give me a regular one. It
6 means it's not compliant for the real ID aﬁd what that means is
7 you can't use it to easily get on an aiiplane. You could use it
8 to get on an airplane but they niay ask you more questions about
8 it. 1In fact you can show up at the airport and get on an
10 airplane and you can still get on the airplane if you explain to
11 them, in a reliable, believable way why you're there with ﬁo
12 credentials, you know what I mean. It's only if you have, well
i3 anyway, I'll leave that to T.S.A. but the fact is that if they
14 were to not like your driver's license, and you said well T do
15" have a high school ID card they would ask you a bunch of
16 questions to make sure that whqt your story hangs together and
17 they'd let you fly where you need to go, unless they have reason
18  to believe that you're defrauding them.
19 So anyway this non-compliant or regular one
20 . you'll see it at the bottom, I think it's, is that the one on
21 ° the bottom? Both of those pages are the same. So you, yeah,
22 - hang onto one of them, and I can't remember whether the
23 ~ non-compliance is at the top or the bottom.
.24 MR. CRUZ: 1It's at the bottom.
25 MS. BLACKWELL: It's at the bottom, thank you,
.26 that's very helpful. So the one at the top has the star, the
277 star on the left-hand side, and that is the Real ID compliant
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one and the one at the bottom says, not for Federal
Identification, and all that is required by the Real ID Act.’

So who gets the non-compliant one, we issue
those to customers who choose a reqular renewal, we also issue
them to non-U.S. citizens who have legal presence as a new
customer but they come in and they say I have legal presence but
my Visa is-only good for four years. . Our license is good for
six years, so that person is eligible for a credential in
Connecticut but they'd only get a regular, not a verified, cause
Ehey have short-term time to stay.

The changes that we made under Select CT IDb,
I've said before, it's really a small change for the, no change
at all for new customers, same standard. A small change for
renewing customers, that's cause they have this choice, they
never had a choice before, so when they come in the new customer
still has to make the same standards that we always had and our
standards have been, these are the requifed elements to get a
license. 1I'll probably repeat myself,

True identity, vou have to prove your
identity, you have to show us what is your full legal name and
if you were to get a verified credential, we ask for your middle
name because the Federal Law now says we need your middle name.

The second thing, well, the third thing is
Connecticut residency, you have to prove that you are a fesident
of the State of Connecticut, and you have- to prove you're
legally present in the United States, either that you're a U.S.

citizen, or non-U.S. citizen with legal presence.
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1 So existing customers have.a choice when they
2 come back to renew starting in October, they can either get a
3 regular or they can get a verified one, I'm starting to sound
4 very repetitive to myself. 1If they choose to get a verified,
5 they have to get me all those elements which are true identity,
) full legal name, Connecticut residency and prove legal presence.
7 So the difference is renewing customers have a choice, if you
8 alfeady have a Connecticut ID or driver's .license you can choose
9 one or the other. If you're a new customer, you moved from out
10 of state or you're a teenager, and it's the first time’yoﬁ had
11 an ID or a driver's license, then you have to méet those
12 standards, .
13 30 one other point if a new applicant, and T
14 did say this before but it was kind of a throw-away, if a new
15 applicant proves all those elements but they have a short-term
16 length of stay, then they only qualify for a regular license,
17 = which has the not for Federal identification and it doesn't have
18 the star.
19 And I'm not, this is kind of not really
- 20 straight-forward your issue, but just so you know if the
21 Legislature gave the DMV the authority to issue a one-year
22 license, the statute says our licenses have an ID, are for six
23 years, if the Legislature gave us the flexibility to issue a one
24 year license, then non-U.8. citiéens who prove all the elements
25 but have a short-term length of stay would be able to-get a
26 license that has a star on it but it would only be for whatever
27 their length of stay is, it would end up being {inaudible) with
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their length of stay.

Was that really confusing?

MR. CRU%: Can you repeat that?

Does that mean if somebody enters with a Visa
and they stay for six months, they can get a license, as long as
they're here —- |

MS. BLACKWELL: Depending on their status.
Usually six months is kind of short --—

MR. CRUZ: It's a Tourist Visa, so they can
know —-

MS. BLACKWELL: -- I mean that's tourist.

MR, CRUZ: No, okay. .

MS. BLACKWELL: No, no, because we're not in
the business of issuing of what, this is my language, we are
not, it costs too much money for us to stay up and running to
issue what are souvenirs, for --

MR. CRU%: Right.

MS. BLACKWELL: —— for people to take
home to their home country, it doesn't make any sense for us Lo
be in that business. We in the business of issuing credentials
to people who are planning'to go to school here, go to work
here, or to become U.S. citizens, so more like immigrants, than
visitors.

MR. CRU%Z: Okay, immigrant visas, right.

MS. BLACKWELL: But it you had a student visa
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i even if you proved all the elements, we would have to give vou a
2 regular,
3 MR. CRUZ: Okay.
4 M3, BLACKWELL 1f we had short-term length of
5 stay, if we had thls ability to be flexible about how long the
6 credential is, we could give a pérson who met all those
7 standards, but had a short-term length of stay a verified
8 license with a star on it.
-9 MR. CRUZ: Hmmm.
10 MS. BLACKWELL: fThat probably didn't help at
11 | all,
‘12 MR. CRUZ: No, I understiand.
13 MS. BLACKWELL: Okay,
14 Sort of my next, sort of thesis here is that
15 thefe's more non-U.S5. citizens now than before October 3, 2011,
16  who are eligible for credentials from Connecticut, the driver's
17 license or the ID.
18 The-reason that's true is that before October,
19 Connecticut used the law enforcement system that checked with
20 legal status, s06 we were using Collect, and Collect is the
21 Connecticut on-line law enforcement communications
22 teleprocessing, .and we used that to verify legal presence. That
23 was because we had people that are post-certified that worked in
24 our branch offices and they were verified or whatever you call
25 it, eligible trained, certified to use Collect.
26‘ But the real idea I said you have to use SAVE
27 and that's a different on—liﬁe verification system. - SAVE stands
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1 for Systematic Alien Verification for Eligibility. The
2 difference between the two is one is a law enforcement based
3 system. The other one is a system that is intended to decide
4 whether somebody's eligible for certain benefits. It's been’
5 around a long time an it was used by Social Service Agencies
6 before it is now being used by DMV's, so as a result the SAVE
7 system now that we're using SAVE instead of Collect, we approve
8 more non-U.5. citizens to obtain a license 6r ID than we did .in
9 the past.
10 Some of the categories that are now approved
11 who used to be denied, persons who had temporary protected
12 status, persons who are under removal, persons whose application
13  for adjustment of status was denied.
14. Under SAVE the.response for those categories,
i5 the only thing SAVE tells us is that person is eligible. They
16 are temporary employment authorized, that's all they tell us,
17 whereas under Collect they would tell us this person is under
i8 removal, all those other statuses that I just went through
19 because SAVE sort of has a different philosophy. 1It's not a law
20 enforcement creature. It's a benefits creature, and what it
21 does, is it will not disclose a negative status until all the
22 appeal process is exhausted. " So they're really two very
23 different systems. |
24 As a result, SAVE has resulted in, when we use
-25 SAVE, there are many fewer denials. For about three-quarters of
26 the year in 2011 we were running SAVE and FLLP, well, Collect
27

together side by side to try to figure out what it's going to
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1 look like when we go with Real ID, and it was clear that there
2 Were many cases, about twenty percent of the cases where Collect
3 would have given us a response that we had to deny, but they '
4 gave us a lot more information, so we were on notice this person
| 5 doesn't have legal'presence, whereas SAVE just gives us this
6 very unspecific response and as a result twenty percent of the
7 applicants are approved whereas they, they under the former
8 system would not have been approved for a licénse or a
9 non-driver ID, h
i0 So now; I'm ready to answer the Questions that
il you posed to us.
12 The first one is the State of Connecticut
13 issuing driver's license§ to people with temporary protected
14 status, and T already said we do, I can't tell you we always do,
15 it depends on the response that USCIS gets, but I do, I would
16 say this, that we met Jan and I and Commissioner Curry, we met:
17 with several advocates of the organizations before going live
18 with Select CT ID. When we met with the American Association of
i9 Immigration Attorneys, wé weren't really sure, it was a-gdod
20 idea, what we did give them our phone numbers, both of us, and
21 we kind of thought, well this is really we're going to get a lot
22 - of calls and maybe our new job will be- answering all these
23 attorneys' questions about why their clients are not getting
24 licenses and that has not been the case. I have not gotten a
25 lot of calls have you?
26 MS. RICHARDS: Not a lot of calls,
27 MS. BLACKWELIL: Okay.
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1 30 I think that's kind of helpful in terms of

2 your question is just temporary protected stétus, buf they

3 represent a lot of categories of people that I think are getting

4 licenses where they didn't in the past without changing our

5 standards.

6 Question number two was, can the State of

7 'Cbnnecticut currently issﬁe driver's licenses to people without

8 immigratioﬁ status under Select CT ID?

.9 For a new credential, no, because one of our
10 requirements is legal presence. New applicants have to have

11 USCIS documentation, that's valid and not expired and they have
12 to receive that skeptical SAVE response. But for a renewing

13 customef, it's possible, because if the customer comes in we

14 only re-verify legal status if the customer asks for a verified
15 credential, and when we have met with other advocacy groups, we
16 have suggested that they should tell their constituencies that
17 they should not go to DMV and ask for a verified credential;

18 first of all there's no reason to get a verified credential

19 unless you're planﬁing domestic travelling, you don't have

20 passport, and secondly we will be required under our policies,
21 procedures and the Law to run a safe inquiry. And once we're on
22 notice that a person does not have legal status, we would begin
23 the process of suspending the privilege. We haven't done that,
24 by the way, I don't know of any cases where we have needed to do
25 that, which is good.

26 | Regarding the number of motor vehiéle

27 accidents, I can't answer that, we don't get that data, I think
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1 that's D.O.T. that gets that.
2 And the fdurth question is, are there legal
3  issues that would prevent the State of Connecticut from issuing
4 driver licenses to peoplé without immigration status, and would
5 that require alchange in regulations or a change in the statute.
6 The statutes grant the Commissioner the
7 authority to set the standards for issuance. The Regulations
8 lay out the standards thaf she adopted, and then the Regulationé
9 establish what documents and credentials, identity-documents are
10 required, including immigration documents.
11 S50 a policy change of the magnitude that we're
12 talking about around issuing licenses or ID's to people that
13 Vdon't have legal presence would require legislative action
14 whether that's to change the statute or to change the
15 Regulations because in Connecticut Regulations go through the
16 legislative review process.
17 Okay, I hope that was helpful_and we can
.18 answer questions.
19 Janet has much more hands-on experience and
20 mine is theoretical.
21 MR. DIAZ: Okay, I'll take this opportunity to
22 open up the floor for questions. Mr, Candelaria
23 MR. CANDELARIA: Okay, thank you.
24 MR. DIAZ: Mr. Candelaria, let me introduce
25 you —-
26 MR. CANDELARIA: Yeah, we met briefly at Carlos
27 Candal.
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1 MS. BLACKWELL: We did.
2 MR. CANDELARIA:  And (inaudible)} as well
3 MR. DIAZ: {(Inaudible)
4 MS. LEBEAU: My name is Jacqui LaBeau, the
5 - organizer, {inauddible)
6 MR. DIAZ: 1 take it you were involved in I91
7 - MS. LEBEAU: {Inaudible)
8
9 MR. CANDELERIA: Yeah, yeah.
10 Just to clarify you said that if one applied
11 or has applied for (inaudible) status and then applies for a
12 license is that sufficient evidence or do they actually have
13 status -~
14 MS, BLACKWELL: They --
15 MR. CANDELERIA: ~- in order to qualify
16 for - ‘
17 MS. BLACKWELL: What we have seen, experienced
18 is that when we learnéd this when we were running Collect as the
19 same time as we have SAVE, we weren't losing it in production,
20 what we call in production, but in my offices we were running
21 both of them to compare them and what we found for pecple in
22 that status Collect would tell us that a person was in that
23 status whereas SAVE only tells us this person has been approved
24 for a temporary, whatever I called it, yes, temporary employment
25 authorized. |
26 MR. CANDELERIA: Right.
27 MS., BLACKWELL: So we say yves to. that status.

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video

860-549-1850 production@brandonreporting.com 249 Pearl Street



~ Fact Finding Hearihg

1/18/2012 o Transcription

Page 22
1 MR. CANDELERIA: So this is clear, clarify
2 this, if somebody is married, gets married, and they apply for
3 adjustment of status, they will receive a receipt notice saying
.4 . that, you know, their application is being processed.
5 In the past the DMV Officers have accepted that receipt notice o
6 evidence that the person is undergoing some type of procedure
7 and then they've allowed that person go forward and obtain a
8 license. Then that changed and the local DMV offices requiped
9 that the people actually had to have a green card in oraer to
i0 apply for a license, no longer just the application.
11 If I'm understanding what you're saying now
12 that one can apply for adjustment of status with that receipt
13 with-that'evidence under the SAVE procedure you could gualify
14 for a license.
15 MS. BLACKWELL: I think maybe it's the
16 identity itself, not legal presence. Some sort of identity
17 first. and foremost is required, you have to have either a valid
18 passport, or a green card, as your primary identity document,
19 that's the first requirement, and then we look for some sort of
20 legal presence document and that could be a notice of éction or
21 something of that sort, but the identity document would be the
22 first requirement, so maybe that's what they are referring to.
23 MR. CANDELRARIA: Well if you apply for
24 T.P.S., you don't haﬁe a visa to come iﬁ, people are here
25 illegally, and under T.P.S., you're saving they céuld apply for,
26 if they are granted T.P.S., they could apply for a driver's
27 license. '
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1 MS. BLACKWELL: Well one of the things I said
2 is we can't say that everybody in that category, in any of these
3 categories is going to be approved, because they do have to
4 prove their identity; the elements that I talked about, identity
5 and. Connecticut residency, full legal name and legal presence,
6 and so we can't tell you, like a hypothetical, this was
7 something that the immigration attorneys really wanted us to do,
8 is say everybody in this category, you're going to approve them,
9 . right, Well, we can't say that, because you have to meet all
i0 of those elements, you can't, they're all prerequisites.
11 MR. CANDELARIA: So they need to have legal
12 status —-
13 MS. BLACKWELL: They need to have legal
14 status.
15 MR. CANDELARIA: -- in order to, okay --—
16 MS. BLACKWERLL: Yes.
17 MR. CANDELARIA: -- not simply the application
18 or proof that Chey filed it or received notification —-
19 MS. BLACKWELIL: No, cause you can't just,
20 right, because you know that you could be, you could have very
21 1ittle documentation of your own identity and go to USCIS and
22 begin a process.
23 MR. CANDELARIA: However if you've been
24 granted a new, your status expires, you're saying that you could
25 still, at that point, qualify for a renewal of the license.
26 MS. BLACKWELL: If you already have a
27 Connecticut credential --
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1 MR. CANDELARTA: Right.
2 MS. BLACKWELL: But you can't let it expire
3 for two years and while it's in the DMV and Qet a renewal.
4 MR. CANDELARIA: Okay. _
5 MS. BLACKWELL: I mean people two years is
6 that, actually a statute that says that you got to maintain your
7 credential, if you have a good credential with Connecticut and
8 your legal status has chgnged and. you don't ask for a verified{
9 you're going to be able to renew it.
10 MR. ROSADO: 1 just have a question in the
11 past you talked about those who were in the process of removal,
12 Caﬁ you just clarify that for me?
13 MS. BLACKWELL: Well, if a person once had
14 legal presence, you have to start with that -
15 MR. ROSADO: Right,
16 MS. BLACKWELL: -- but they're under removal
17 for some reason, maybe they overstayed their Visa, and then
18 I mean, you know, I don't really practice immigrétion law, I
19 don't know how people gef into that category of removal status.
20
21 MR. ROSADO: That's what T was asking,
22 MS. BLACKWELL: What I'm saying is, is that
23 what you wanted to know -—
" 24 MR. ROSADO: Sure, yeah.
25 MS. BLACKWELL: —- how you get into removal?
26 MR. ROSADA: How are those, and how are they
27 identified that they are in legal process. You're saying
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1 removal, we're saying removal from, being removed  from the
2 United States or from --
3 MS. BLACKWELL: It means this, it means that
4 the U.S. Customs and Immigration, they're moving-to take your
5 sﬁatus and saying you actually have to leave the United States
) physicaily, and the law enforcement system that we once used
7 which was Collect would have reported that to us and we use that
8 - as a basis for denyiné a driver's license -or an ID, but it could
9 take years for USCIS to remove‘pgople.
10 And the good thing about SAVE is that they really focus on only
11 reporting status after due process is exhausted.
12 MR. ROSADO: Thank you.
13 MR. DIAZ: Werner.
14 MR. OYANADEL: Let me ask you the question
15 again, maybe I didn't understand the response. I think you
16 mentioned that people with Temporary Protected Status are
17 currently not getting drivers' licenses, but they are being
18 allowed by the USCIS to remain and work in the United States, my
19 question is, there shouldn't be any reason under this new
20 program to deny them access.
21 1f I understand the process is correctly, you
22 would have a Federal government aéency giving that individual a
23 work permit to work in the country, but how are they going to go
24 to work now if now they can't get a driver's license because the
25 DMV does not accept that federally-accepted document?
26 MS. BLACKWELL: Well, the Federal government
27 in that case is making the decision to not grant legal status,
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1 they're not granting anything other than they re saying-you can
2 stay here and you can earn a living, and we're completely aware
3 that there is disparities in unresolved areas in this area of
4 the law. But we do not think the DMV can resolve those things,
5
6 If somebody doesn't have the basic elements
7 that I talked about, then they're not g01ng to’ get past the
'8 process that we . have in place in order for our credential to
9 have any 1ntegr1ty to it,
10 ' MR. CANDELARIA: That's a good question
i1 because legal presence, I mean if the person’'s under Temporary
i2 Protected Status, then they're legally allowed to be in the
i3 country, so that would, so therefore one would assume it's legal
i4 presence, if that's the case,
i5 MS. BLACKWELL: Well, I thihk you would know
16 we're talking about a legal standard of legal presence not just
17 the fact that people happen to be here and they're not under
18 arrest, |
19 MR, CANDELARIA: No, no, Legal Protected
20 Status, Temporary Protected Status, so they've applied, they've
21 been granted Temporary Protected Status,-so that --
22 M3. BLACKWELL: What else do they have, right,
23 we're trying to feel, it depends, I thlnk in nmy comments, what I
24 said was some of the categories that we now get approved, we
25 were not approving some people who had Temporary Protected
26 Status, where we hever used to approve them at all. But it
27 requires that you have your entire, we cannot answer like in a
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1 hypothetical will you issue to anybody who's got that status, no
2 we can't say that. I look at the whole picture what do they
3 have.
4 If you have a specific person and they are
5 denied, you know we have an appeal process, there's a review
6 process, and also you can request a Hearing.
7 _ MR. CANDELARIA: But if you're saying if: you,
8 if they had the proper documentation, they can show the birth
9 certificate or identification, they show they have a temporary
10 —-=
11 MS. BLACKWELL: {Inaudible) .
12 MR. CANDELARIA: Right.
13 -— and I guess the issue is legal presence,
1.4 right, and Temporary Protected Status, one would assume is one
15 is allowed legally to be in the country because you're
16 protected, because you can't go back to Honduras, you can't go
17 back to Salvador.
i8 MS. BLACKWELL: We have tons of people in that
19 situation where we issue licenses to them. We have people that
20 are Haitian assigned leaves, we have, there's a lot of statuses
21 but if you're asking me to say that you have a hypothetical
22 person with Temporary Protected Status —-
23 MR. CANDELARIA: No —--
24 MS. BLACKWELL: -- I don't know what the facts
25 -=
26 MR. CANDELARIA: -- no, no, it's the same as
27 if it was somebody who has status under an Immigrant Visa, the
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1 question is, is that equivalent of an Immigrant Visa or a
2 . Non-Immigrant Visa, a Special Visa, is T.P.S.! eguivalent to
3 that in order to obtain a driver's license, éll other things
4 being equal.
5 MS. BLACKWELL: Yes, they give their identity,
6 first we look for their identity documents and if they prove
7 that, and then we get notification of areas that are designated
8 T.P.3. status and they're in that designation, it would say that
9 the current employment authorization document that the applicant
i0 has may be extended for "X period of time, and if USCIS grants
11 that, then we honor that --
12 MR. CANDELARIA: Okay.
i3 MS. BLACKWELL: -- we get that notification
14 and as long as we, you know you just have to remember we start
15 with identity, so as long as they brovide us with the identity.
16 - documents, they have a valid form task for it, and then we know
lj the Temporary Protected Status has been granted and they come in
18 with, they could come in with an E.A.D. that's been expired. As
19 long as we have that notification from Immigration that says
20 that E.A.D. has been extended for whatever the period of time,
21 we can honor that, and as long as when we, like we were saying,
22 as long as we run that on SAVE that immigration comes back with
23 that same message and says that this person is eligible to be
24 issued the card, then we would issue it.
25 | MR. CANDELARIA: Right.
26 MS. BLACKWELL: We would issue it, and that's
27 how the T.P.S. works.
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1 MR, CANDELARIA: That's good.
2 MS. RICHARDS: I'm going to present a huge
3 hypothetical situation and {inaudible} .
4 What if the Governor of Connecticut and the
5 Commissioner and the Legislature all supported the idea of |
6 . anyone, you know passing the tests and things and has
7 identification who they are including undocumented immigrants,
8 could come in as a new applicant and get a license that allows
9 them to drive but not to use to it until you get the non-select
10 license, and the Tegislature supported that, you know,
11 overwhelmingly, would there be a way to draft something, all of
12 those people working together that would allow that second
13 license to be available to new applicants and not violate
14 Federal Law?
15 MS. BLACKWELL: What Federal Law, you mean the
16 Real ID? | |
17 MS. RICHARDS: Anything, the Real ID is
18 probably the one, but any one.
19 MS. BLACKWELL: I don't feel qualified to
20 answer that. A wonderful hypothetical though.
21 MR. OYANADEL: Let me go back to the
27 adjustment status question and T will give you a hypothetical
23 question too.
24 A student overstays their Visa and their
- 25 passport expires, they marry a U.S. citizen, the Federal
26 Government issues that person a temporary or an adjustment of
27 status, and they give that person that ticket, if they go now to
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1 get a driver's license, a non-verified license, they are going
2 to be able to show a document that it's approved under Federal
3 Government that you are legally to pe able to stay here, but
4 . their passport will be expired, therefore, the DMV is not going
5 to accept that application because the identification documents
6 are not valid, is that the case?
7 MS. BLACKWELL: That exactly, cause we would
8 loock for a valid passport which is considered the primary
9 identity document which is a separate requirement than legal
10 practice,
11 MR, OYANADEL: Okay.
12 MS. BLACKWELL: Caﬁse you're describing a new
13 applicant --
14 MR. OYANADEL: A new applicant.
15 MS. BLACKWELL: -- with new credentials.
16 ﬁR. OYANADEL: Correct. And you have --
17 MS. BLACKWELL: WNot a renewal dpplicant.
18 - MR. OYANADEL: An applicant that was
19 * undocumented and that person adjusted their status, it's in the
20 ° process of getting.a documentation from the USCIS, but it
21 doesn't have a valid passport, that person would not be able to
22 get a driver's license until that paésport is somehow validated
23 again.
24 MS. BLACKWELL: Exactly.
25 MR. OYANADEL: Thank you.
26 UNIDENTIFIED VOICE: And my question is going
27

back to the part where you said that you know the Federal Law
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1 sometimes it doesn't quite goes with what .you're working in the
2 State of Connecticut, would that be something that more likely
3 the Commission you know itself Cannét change or will that have
4 -to be something that we have to work through Legislation to have
5 some kind of a comment language that will agree with the Federal
6 langquage if a person is here with a Working Visa you know to be
7 able to acquire a driver's license.
8 MS. BLACKWELL: I think it requires whether
9 you do it to a Regulation or a Statute that requires that the
10 Legislation act on it, and you know there's only three states
.11 right now that issue licenses or credentials of any sort to
12 undocumented non-U.S. citizens. And one of those is ruled in
13 the Legislature in Mexico is moving to impose a legal presence
14 requirement so movement in the States is not in the direction of
15 eliminating legal presence. It is really in the direction of
16 making it so that all the states require legal presence.
17 I don't know the answer to that, and you know
18 it's confusing because there are a lot of states that they have
19 legislative statements against the Real ID, however, because
20 what I was saying that its presence practices, a lot of states
21 are adopting those practices to‘insure the integrity and
22 reliability of their credential.
23 UNIDENTIFIED VOICE: Thank you.
24 MR, WISHNIE: OQur agency is specifically is
25 part of the Executive Branch as you are aware. Because of that
26 we really don't comment on policy, on what we feel the policy,
27 that's more of a question for I think State Representative
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1 Candelaria,
2 We appreciate this as more for the
3 Legislature. If our state chooses to adopt a specific statute,
"4 - we're Here to enforce it, that's what we do in OUr ageéncy, we
5 just enforce the law. We take no policy or opinion about
6 specific statutes. So we have to make sure we enforce the
7 statutes on a neutral and objective basis, and T
8 can tell you what we do is we do rely on Collect in our system,
9 - so if we pull over a vehicle or if we're investigating a motor
i0 vehicle accident whatever it may be, we run a person's identity
i1 through Collect. 1If it shows they have a valid driver's license
12 or not, that's the enforcement we take. That's as brief and as
13 ‘simple as I can be on that. Again, I think you appreciate
14 (inaudible) that's what I'm here for.
15 With respect to the questions that you posed
16 to our agency, those questions are actually better directed at
17 the Department of Transportation, D.O.T., Connecticut State
18 B.0.T.'s essential repository for the records of motoxr vehicle
i9 accidents, Basically whét happens is when an officer, a state
20 ° law enforcement or local‘law enforcement officer they
21 ,ipvestigate for example a motor vehicle crash, that's what you
22 call a PR14, on the point itself there are certain codes that in
23 our division, ocur crime analysis ‘unit, we enter in codes, those
24 codes are sent over to D.O0.T. What I mean by codes are does the
25 operative have a valid driver's license or not, so on and so
26 forth, what‘was the injury, what was . the damage, all that
271 information that you were looking for a D.0.T. should be able
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1 to give you that. That's my statement.

2 'MR. DIAZ: Right.

3 MS. BLACKWELL: Does that include residents

4 aﬁd insured? A

5 MR. WISHNIFE: Yes, that's captured in the

6 PROA .

7 MR. CANDELARIA: 1 have a few questions.

8 So as the Head of the Department of Emergency Services and

9 Pﬁblic Protection, I guess the question would be there is a
10 purpose for people to go through training, obtaining, péssing
11 the driver's exam, right, a public safety benefit.to that.
12 Would you have any idea as far as you know as numbers or
13 percentages of peo?le that are involved in accidents that may
i4 not have a license in general or --
15 MR, WISHNIE: WNo, you know to be fair to give
16 you an accurate answer D.O.T. would be better. The reason I say
17 that is we're only half of the picture if you will. When we
18 record our information it goes to D.O.T., we're just on the
19 state side, State Law Enforcement, you still have half of the
20 state that's covered by local law enforcement officers, and they
21 have their own records and they also forward those records over
22 to D.O.T. so to get an accurate number and information they're
23 looking for, you would have to go through them.
24 MR. CANDELARIA: But it would definitely be
25 helpful for individuals, all individuals that are driving to go
26 through training and pass the State of Connecticut Driver's
27 License Certification.
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i MR. WISHNIE; Absolutely,
2 You know one thing I should note immigration
3 itself it's a Federal.question, it's jurisdiction and Federal
4 and the Federal law enforcement side, and therlaw enforcement
5 side, state, loéals, we have no jurisdiction whatsoever. We are
6 not authorized to enforce immigration. It's solely a question
7 of Federal jurisdiction.
8 MR. CANDELARIA: I guess a question a concern
9 we have is there's so many beople that are driving on the roads
i0 without licenses, right, because they can't quallfy for one
il legally because of their immigration status, wouldn't it make
12 sense to allow them the opportunity, there would be a benefit
13 obviously if they were able to go through some type of training
14 right, to maybe cause less
15 accidents - 7
16 MR. WISHNIE: There is a benefit for everyone
17 in --
18 MR.CANDELARIA: Right.
19 MR. WISHNTE: -- and no matter the
20 immigration status I think here is, is not indeterminate factor
21 I think everyone who's driving a vehicle should go through some
" 22  sort of training.
23 MR. CANDELARIA: So the roads may be made
24 safer potentially if immigrants were allowed to go through
25 training.
26 MR. WISHNIE: Well I-won‘t take a position on
27 that. I can't take a position on that again becausec I'm more on
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1 the enforcement side of the law so it's better if we just remain
2 we're committed to enforcing the laws that are on the books and
3 that's more of a question for the Legislature to answer it.
4 Mr. CANDELARIA: But it's good to héve the
5 input -
6 MR. WISHNIE: Sure.
i) MR. CANDELARIA: -—- theré may be less
8 accidents caused if somebody is able to go through training.
9 MR. WISHNIE: Absolutely.
10 MR. CANDELARIA: Right?
11 MR. WISHNIE: Absolutely
12 MR. CANDELARIA: Okay. I don't know if
13 anybody else has any questions.
14 | MR. CRUZ: Any more dguestions, thank you very
15 much for your time.
16 MR. WISHNIE: Thank you.
17 MR. CANDELARIA: Thank you.
18 MR. CRUZ: This is a Fact Fin&ing Hearing
19 pursuant to Statute we have to meet and report it.
20 MR. OYANADEL: And through the chair you may
21 also want to give a reasoning ;nd background why you're doing
22 this to the speakers.
23 MR, CRUZ: Sure.
24 The Latino and Puerto Rican Affairs Agency is
25 Agency is a commission that's commissioned that was created by
26 the statute in order to assist the Connecticut General Assembly
27 with implementing policies and legislation that could meet the
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1 needs of the Latino community in five specific areas. Health,
2 education, public safety, self—sufficiéncy and determination.
3 The purpose of this Fact Finding Hearing is
4 because statute requires us to do our hoémework so Lo speak
5 before we make any proposals forAlegislation and want to attend
6 to, that's the reason why we invited S0 many different people
7 from different backgrounds and locations for this Fact Finding
8 Hearing today. So without further ado, I'd like to péss the
9 board to ybu guys to introduce yourself.
10 | MR. WISHNIE: My name is Mike Wishnie. I
11 teach at Yale Law School. ‘Thank you very much for this
i2 opportunity to come before you and I very much apologize, we
13 were stuck in traffic on 91 there was an accident or something;
14 thank you for accommodating us with this schedule,
15 MR. SHAYAK: My name is Shayak Sarkar, Law
16 Student at Yale, {(Inaudible)
17 MR. CRUZ: Welcome.
18 MR, SHAYAK: Sorry again for the incredible
19 delay. I prepared some remarks, so I'1ll be brief. So my name
20 is Shayak, as I mentioned, for the past few months I've been
21 representing Connecticut éeligious Congregatibns organized for
22 Youth Connecticut, 1It's an inter-faith coalition of over
23 twenty-five congregations, and it's all over and it was founded
24 this past November in the presence of thousands of congregation
25 members, community leaders and Governor Molloy.
26 o Connecticut, Connect's platform for Youth
27 Connecticut includes four divisions, the first three of which
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are making job training more effective, addressing the state
foreclosure and prices and improving health care and health care
insurance premiums, the fourth and final division is for safe
travel, which includes drivers' licenses for immigrants,
regardless of status so I've come here today on behalf of
Connect to present the research that we've done in preparation
of this platform.

The goal of my testimony is to convey our
legal and economic research which first indicates that the State
of Connecticut has the authority to issue licenses to
undocumented residents, second three other states have such a
process and third and finally we calculate them for permitting
Connecticut residents to obtain licenses and register their
vehicle to yield revenue benefits of close to tﬁree million
dollars actually.

So to begin with Realize~E, the main legal
obstacle in issuing these licenses is (inaudible) the Federal
Realize~E Act, we conclude however that the plain language of
the Realize-E Act and its implementing regulations issued by the
Department of Homeland Security confirmed that Connecticut is
fully authorized in issuing licenses without regard to
immigration statusl.

In addition, DHS has repeatedly delayed the
implementation of the Federal Statute in part due to technical
challenges, and in part to sustain opposition to the law from
other states.

T+ is far from clear that Realize-E will ever
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1 take it back, again, however, our main point is that is even if
2 Realize-E does ever take éffect it is in no way prohibiting
3  Connecticut from issuing licenses with Yegards to immigration
4 status.
5 This Select Connecticut Program is completely
6 permissible under Federal Law, and this is the future that
7 currently exists, and within that future program, Connecticut is
8 authorized to issue licenses for undocumented immigrants.
9 In fact the final rule regarding the minimum
10 . standard for Realizing Youth promulgated in 2008 assume that
11 states could implement the return of identification and our
12 licensing systems. To quéte from the regulation, "this
13 regulatory evaluation assumes that states will apply the two
14 tier or multiple licensing. system".
15 Connecticut now offers a Select ID
‘16 which is Real ID compliant and therefore should be accepted by
17 Federal Officials after Janunary 15, 2013. One {inaudible) on
18 the Select ID Application process is to verify legal presence,
19 However, the document checklist
20 explicates if the length of legal presence is unknown or expires
21 before a full license term which is six years. The applicant is
22 not qualified for a verified driver's license or ID Card.
23 The state, therefore, cannot respectively
24 issue a driver's license to people without immigration status
- 25 under SELECT CT., moreover even those with Temporary Legal
26 Presence are excluded.
27 The second (inaudible) of the Secretary of
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Homeland Security has designated with Temporary Protected Status
have scheduled an expiration dates in or before 2013.
So in response to the Commission's Questions, since T.P.S. will
be expired in less than six years, we do not predict people
under T.P.S. despite having legal presence, will be able to meet
the legal presence reguirement under Select CT.

However, as authorized by the Federal

O ey s W N

Regulation Connecticut has chosen to continue to offer non-

] Real ID 1icenses as well but only to those seeking to renew
A10 -their license, nol new applicants. The new Select ID Program is
11 currently only at the MV policy and is not covered by
12 Regulation. Changes to its administration are at the discretion-
13 of Commissioner Curry.
14 Not simply by changing the DMV Regulations,
15 undocumented immigrants may have access to driver's license and
16 this does not conflict with Federal Law. Realizing it does not
17 further with this, and it's possible for Connecticut to fulfill
18 the Federal mandate and violate mail law by contihuing to offer
19 future licenses if it includes a non—-Real ID compliant license
20 that undocumented illegal's can have access to.
21 In terms of the time line, a bipolar
22 explanation of the act and dit's time line, in 2005 Congress
23 passed Realize-E Act which requires eaéh state to offer
24 Realize-¥ Compliant Licenses to its residents by the Statute's
25 effective date. To reduce states to issue a Realize-E Compliant
26 License a Federal Law stated that there were minimum standards

27 that Realize-E Complaint Licenses needed to adhere to.
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i After the effective date, the Federal Agency
2 may not accept for an official purpose a driver's license or
3 identification card issued by the state unless the state is
4 meeting their (inaudible) of the act. In the actual (1naud1ble)
5 itself it says that it can meet the requirements of the act by
6 having (inaudible) licenses due as long as the non-Real ID
7 compliant IDs are designated by a particﬁlar designs or
8 particular colors and are made obvious to Federal officials.
9 In addition to excluding undocumentéd
10 immigrants from the ability to obtain Real ID compliant
11 licenses, the Real ID Act requirements include some of legal
12 immigration statuses as well, including persons granting legal
13 renewal, persons relevant to the United States, applicants who
14 were nét in (inaudible) and those under T.P.5. as 1 earlier
- 15 mentioned.
16 {Inaudible) or Real IDs raises'serious
17 concerns for (inaudible) immigrants because their status must be
18 their status must be there and by SAVE a department of Homeland
19 Security database with document deficiencies. 1In short, the
20 Federal Law i1f ever takes effect will require Connecticut to
21 issue a Real ID compliant license since Connecticut began
22. offering such a license since October 2011 the state is fully in
23 compliance almost one and a half years in advance of the current
24 effective date.
25 But the more important plan is that nothing in
26 the text of the Real ID Act or in DHS is impleﬁenting
27 Regulations for each state from offering a second license as
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1 well, one that satisfies state standards but which may depart
2 from the Federal Rules governing Real ID compliant licenses as
3 long as it's made obvious.
4 So to discuss a little bit aboult experiences
5 in other states, three states currently continue to make
6 driver's licenses available to undocumented immigrants, Utah,
7 Washington and New Mexico.
8 Prior to 2005 undocumented immigrants had
9 access to driver's licenses in Utah and in 2005, the state
10 enacted a lawful presence reguirement for state driver's
11 licenses; however, at the same they enacted a driving privilege
12 card that is available regardless of proof of lawful status in
13 the United States. The card gives the holder the right to
14 drive, but exclusively .states on its face that it is not a valid
15 form of government identification and should not be used for
16  that purpose.
17 Since the passage of Utah's law in 2005,
18 there have repeated efforts to repeal it. In March 2011, a bill
19 to repeal the driving privilege card provision was introduced.
20 That bill ‘was unsuccessful, yet a bill that creates additional
21 hurdles to obtain the driving privileges card replaced it.
22 The bill which was enacted requires a person
23 applying for a drivers privilege card to submit fingerprints and
24 criminal background check at the applicant's expense. Those
25 requirements went into effect on July 1st, 2011.
26 Unlike Utah, Washington does not differentiate
27 between the drivers' licenses issued to those who can prove
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1 lawful status and those who cannot. The Senate in Washington
2 put in several different licensing bills in March 2011; some of
3 which would create a system similar td Utah's, others that would
- 4 have eliminated access to drivers' licenses entirely for those
5 without lawful status; however that bill came to a vote on March
6 7th, 2011, and failed in the twenty-five to twenty-three votes,
7 Similar to Washington, New Mexico currently
8 allows immigrants without proof of legal status to access
9 driver's licenses on equal terms with our residents of the
10 state. The law sending out (inaudible) was‘passed in 2003,
11 Recently the issue has been in the Legislature. 1It's been
12 central to Republican Govefnor, Suzannah Martinez, who wishes to
13 repeal the 2003 Law. Although repealing the 2003 Law was
14 introduced last winter, it passed the House of Representatives,
15 but failed in the Senate. The sponsored plan to reintroduce the
16 bill in September, but at the last minute restated. it, that they
17 did not have enough votes to bypassing this Committee, and
18 passed it in the House.
19 Under the Hofstetter {phonetic spelling)
20 Administration, the application process has tightened
21 and the Houston Chronicle reported that (inaudible) licenses had
22 dropped fifty-seven percent during the first seven of the
23 governor's administration. In August 2011, the Governor ordered
24 the state to revert, to re-verify thé residence of all fofeign
25 nationals with New Mexican Driver's Licenses, A Federal
26 District Jﬁdge in an action brought by (inaudible)
27 housing the program has preliminarily joined that order.
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1 So these three states Utah, Washington and New

2  Mexico thus continue to offer driver's licenses to undocumented

3 populations and provide an incentive by which Connecticut can

4 follow up.

5 So in terms of the economic analysis, we

6 project revenue benefits that the State of Connecticut could

7 gain at a figure nearly $3,000,000.00, 2.16 million dollars in

8 car registration revenue and $624.000 in drivers' license fees.

9 This is just from undocumented immigrants who would gain access
10 from licenses; this does not include legal immigrants like those
11 under the T.P.S. who would also contribute to enhanced revenues
12 so these estimates thﬁoughout the process that we have discussed
13 -are very conservative,

14 _ So diverse estimate the number of cars

15 unregistered but owned by undocumented immigrants you can go

16 through an interesting experiment of a recent Chio statutory

17 change.

18 Chio revised its laws in 2009 to require a

19 obtainable social security number, driver's license number, or
20 state identification number, after the change the Chio Bureau of
21 Motor Vehicles that let more individuals at the registration to
22 be cancelled unless they produced the newly required documents.
23 Due to the more stringent identification

24 reguirements, Ohio identified those registrations that were not
25 compliant, and allowed for three months for individuals to

26 update the registration. Only a small fraction complied and

27 about forty-five thousand registrations were cancelled in that

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video
860-549-1850 production@brandonreporting.com 249 Pearl Street



Fact Finding;ﬁearing

L‘;1:1/18/2012 ) Transcription
‘ Page 44
1 state with twelve million registered vehicles, which we can
2 assume to be the number of wvehicles owned by undocumented
3 drivers at that time in Ohio.

4 If we assume the ratio of vehicles owned by

5 the undocumented to the overall undocumented population equal

6 across states we then estimate fifty-four thousand unregistered

7 vehicles undocumented immigrants in Connecticut based on

8 estimates from:Pew Research éenter. This figure is larger than

9 that for oOhio beéause while the overall population of Ohio is
10 nearly three times as large of that Connecticut, Connecticut's

11 estimated undocumented population exceeds that of Ohio.

12 To calculate the number of un&ocumented

13 drivers, we have the second assumption of assuming the ratio of
14 overall vehicle registratioﬂ to licensed drivers in the State of
15 Connecticut, when that state applies to the undocumented

16 uﬁlicensed driver community as well. This would give us about
17 fifty-two thousand drivers. This has lead the Conservatives

18 into such demographics of the undocumented community would

19 suggest that more drivers share cars in the general population.
20 Nonetheless the estimate of fifty-four

21 thousand unregistered vehicles and about fifty-two thousand

22 drivers which combine with the annual vehicle fee and drivers'
23 license fees in Connecticut suggest 2.16 million dollars in

24 registration revenue and $624,000.00 in annual drivers' license
25 fees for a total of 52,784,000.00.

26 We also have not included thé $40.00 DMV

27 examination fees since we assume Lhe marginal cost of actually
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1 administering a driving test is somewhat high, so then that
2 revenue here may be close tb zero, but even if this revenue is
3 close to zero, more examinations means more public employment
4 because we'll have to hire examiners which is a social issue of
5 itself.
6 But again our estimate is conservative to make
7 a point. Moreover our estimates also do not include the
8 possible economic stimulus from promoting car purchases from
9 Connecticut dealers and related automobile maintenance and
10 accessory costs, if people's inclination to purchase automobiles
11 responds positively to registration availability a very feasible
12 proposition.
13 And even more broadly speaking there are left
14 to be large gains for enabling people to have more mobility in
15 their job searches which would rectify market inefficiencies.
16 So in conclusion, our research for Connect
17 demonstrates that providing licenses to immigrants through’
18 (inaudible} and documentation centers is not only legal but
19 economically beneficial.
20 First, the plain language of Real ID and DHS
21 is implementing English and it is confirmed that Connecticut is
22 fully authorized in issuing licenses to immigrants, provided
23 only that the state also i1ssue a Real ID compliant license,
24 which it does in the current SELECT CT System.
25 Second, Matching Connecticut's own statutes
26 permits DMV permission licenses and registration to residents
27 regardless of their immigration status, the obstacle is merely
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1 if a DMV Regulation is powerful.
2 Third, Real ID's persistent delay suggest it
3 may never go into effect, and if it does the statute does not
4 percolate into your system where driver licenses which are not
5 valid for Federal ID can be issued.
6 This is in fact that it's a current policy and
7 a current regulation can expand access to all immigrants and
8 simply resume for license reneﬁal.
9 Fourth, it's like Utah, New Mexico,
10 Washington, offer concrete examples of this capacity. The
11 economic revenue benefits even when interpretively estimated are
12 significant and suggest, as T mentioned before a stable
13 additional three million dollars in revenue,
14 I would be happy to try to answer any further
15 questions you might have,
i6 On behalf of Connect I thank the Commission
17 for the opportunity to present our message.
18 Q. Regarding to the three states that you
19  mentioned that already have the system for some time line, Utah,
20 Washington, New Mexico, are you aware whether or not, perhaps
21 you've come across in your research, if their Tegislatures voted
22 to adopt the Federal Legislation or the Real ID Federal
23 Legislation as Connecticut has.
24 A. I'm not positive but I don't think all
25 of the states are opting out of the idea. 7
26 A. I'm not sure either but I think the,
27 first of all realize these effective dates (inaudible) there's
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i every reason to think it's going to be postponed based on
2 opposition from many states so Connecticut's jumped the gﬁn by
3 offering Real ID compliant card year starting in October, but
4 they didn't have to do that. The deadline for clients with Real
5 ID as we sit here today is 2013 so tﬁe (inaudible) a year and a
6 half.
7 In addition, you asked if the Legislatures had
8 adopted provisions in their states, the important point here is
g that currently it's purely a function of DMV Regulations that
10 the licenses issued in Connecticut and registration in |
11 Connecticut are not available to persons without immigration
12~ status. It's not a function of Real ID.to tether along even if
13 ever does come into effect, Shayak explained the Federal Law
14 expressly approves a two Lier system that Connecticut has, énd
15 . second it's not a function of State Statute. Connecticut's
16 State Statute of DMV leave it.to the discretion of the
17 Commission where no state statute needs to be amended to allow
18 the DMV to start issuing driver's licenses more broadly, it's
19 purely a regulatory choice of the’Commissioner. I know Miss
20 Reynolds and Miss Blackwell don't like to hear that. I've
| 21 talked about this with them before.  They said oh you got to go
22 to the Legislature we need to check the Statute. That's not so0,
23 as far as our legal analysis says that's not so it's purely a
24 regulétory choice by Connecticu£, it is not compelled by Federal
25 or State Law.
26 Q. What they were saying when they were
27 here was that Connecticut is the only state of the Union that
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1 has a Legislative Review Process for Regulations so therefore
2 the Legislature has to approve changes in Regulations.
3 A, Yes, that is, T don't know about every
4 state in the nation, I haven't been in all of them, but it's
5 true in Connecticut that regulatory changes get submitted to
6 the Legislature, but that's a different process, I don't need to
7 explain which process to you and fo {inaudible) but that's a
8  different legislative process than introducing a bill, passing
9 both Houses, go for a signature. There's a streamlined object
10 but it begins with submissioﬁ of the Regulation. It doesn't
11 begin with the bill introduced into the Legislature. But if
12 that's what the Cbmmission, that is true, but what triggers that
13 process is DMV bringing to the Legislature the proposed
14 Regulation. ‘
15 A. And then kind of only if somebody
16 objected to the problem, is, say that can come to a public
17 hearing maybe.
- 18 Q. S0 our understanding is --
19 A, Actually that's reviewed by the
20 Requlations Review Committee. The ult;a center regulation we'll
21 discuss and will review it and, yeaﬁ you finish that and then
22 we'll take it up for both on that topic.
23 Q. S0 there is an actuai vote of the entire
24 Legislature —- -
25 MR. ROSADO: Of the Committee.
26 MS. RICHARDS: Of‘the Committee,
27 MR. ROSADO: Of the Committee,

R
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1 MS. RICHARDS: HNot the rest?
2 MR. ROSADO: WNot the rest.
3 A, There's a process where it's
.4 submitted
5 to the Attorney General, he has thirty days to comment, but if
6 the Attorney General makes no comment then it goes forward,
7 .there is a thirty day waiting period for the Attorney General,
8 so.there is a procediral step, but it does go through ordinary

] legislative process, it's a streamlined one, it's much simpler,
10 but again, the regulatory process begins with the agency coming
11 to the Legislature sayihg okay here's on your reqg, but if there
12 are any problems hére, and'I think the overwhelming majority
13 regulations are crude in all the sector 6f this process. This
14 might change the truth or potentially any other regulations but
15 the point is that it doesn’'t require a statute, there could be a
16 statute, we could say we are going to rewrite the statute to
17 mandate it but that's not necessary. And I think that in our
18  conversations with the (inaudible) is really not us, you havé to
19 talk to the Legislature and then again this could pass the
20 statutory (inaudible) is not necessary, it's kind of (inaudible)
21 to start this process.

22 : a. ~And when they declare bias that when
23 it |

24 goes to the Attorney General, the purpose of that is to

25 determine the efficiency. 8o the Attorney General would be

26 passing onto the Sub-Committee who will determine whether it

27 conflicts with existing Federal recent law.
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1 Q. So taking that one (inaudible)
2 with the passage of the Attorney General, Connecticut if I'm not
3 mistaken did vote to approve the Select ID Program. What types
4 of potential conflicts of law could the Attorney éeneral face in
5 the event that the DMV decided to pass a Regulation if I'm not
6 mistaken with legal presence being one of -the requirements, what
7 types of conflicts would that potentially create?
8 A, Again in our view not because, first
9 of
10 all Federal Taw has not taken effect yet. It takes effect in
11 -2013, it gets postponed by Republic and Democratic
12 investigations repeatedly. Already, it faces widespread state
13 opposition. So there's everything like that, they will continue
14 to postpone it. But even if it was in effect today, the Federal
15 Statute in its term Section 202F11, the Federal Statute in
16 implementing Regulation 6CFR37271, is exclusively saying what
17. states must do is offer a Real 1p compliant license and if you
18 do that, it's also okay to offer other forms of license that
19 don't realize the standards, as there are two tier so you must
20 offer the compliant license. As long as you do that, you can
21 also do something else, so Connecticut is now in compliance w1th
22 the legislation because of the Select ID License does have
23 special liceénse requirements. Given that Connecticut jumped the
24 gun {inaudible) and complied with your licensing that means the
25 door is open to Connecticut In fact, I think DMV agrees with
26 much of this because they do have a contlnuatlon two tier
27 system, it's just a narrow two tier system, that is, my
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understanding is that the Select ID now which is really like the
compiiant and what they're doing is continuing to renew existing
licenses for people who cannot get a Select ID based on the
immigration status rules, but people just like the renewals,

- student ({inaudible) or studént ﬁisa or H1V High Tech Worker, or
a éimilar T.P.S., whatever agreeé to go legal, but if they're a

new applicant they're not going to get that reqular licensing.

o ~ oy R W N

Connecticut agrees that they can offér a non-Real ID compliant

9 license, and we're doing it today, but the problem is
10 (inaudibie) with Connect, they're offering that to Maryland, and
11 there you have a two tier system, that's the optimum legal
12 solution and I think that I agree with them is I just think they
13 should open the eligibility, extend the eligibility for the
14 non-Select IP for all public safety and revenue and other
15 busingss {inaudible).
16 A, Adding one point to that is an
17 undocumented immigrant who currently has a driver's license
18 . doesn't realize the difference Between the Select CT ID and the
19 regular driver's renewal and accidentally applies for the Select
20 CT, not only will they be denied the Select CT ID, but they'll
21 actually lose their license as well. So our conversations would
22 indicate about making communities aware of that to assure that

23 people who don't have status don't apply for Select C¥, because

24 its repercussions are really large,.

25 . MR. DIAZ: Do you have a guestion?

26 0. I don't know, do you want to go I have a
27 few.
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1 0. I just havé a quiék one,
2 Any possibility of a lawsuit here because some people in -
3 identical be denied some kind of (inaudible) .
4 A First they haven't looked at it
5 In that direction, I think, my hope is that these minds can come
6 to an agreement, I think widespread recognition of public safety
7 and revenues benefits the State of Connecticut, withstanding
8 accidents, bringing people into this loop so that people on the
9 road know who they're dealing with, so that regulatoré can do
10 the whole thing.
11 We have to look them as the first group, but (inaudible).
12 Q. Yes,
- 13 A, I would like to think that we just have
14 to go through the course.
15 Q. Hmmm, huwn.
16 Q. Is there any idea regarding revenues in
17 savings, if.people are allowed to get licenses, they are going-
isg to be allowed to register the cars and also obtain insurance.
19 How many accidents are caused every year with people involved
20 who don't have insufance? Connecticut residents insurance rates
21 go up. It's got to be some type of cost savings to the public
22 in general, as well as all the cases that are prosecuted in the
23 Courts for people who don't have licenses that don't have
24 ipsurance, that don't have registration, thousands of cases a
25 year, right, there's got to be an estimate of you know police
26 man power, prosecutor's time, co-defenders time, judicial time
27 resources, and then also safety, I mean how many accidents are
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1 caused every year, how many accidents occur every year, and how

2 many of those involve people who aren't allowed to obtain a

3 license and go through the trainiﬁg pfocedure. ‘There may be ten

4 or twenty percent less accidents of those people involved if

5 they are able to obtain proper certification, right, there's got

6 to be millions of dollars worth of savings potentially to all

7 citizens, I'm not sure if that's something that you're able to

8 calculate somehow.

9 A, Yes, we haven't actually looked in the
10 specific statistics, we've started trying to find studies that
11 will get (inaudible) regarding public safety and those are
12 actually hard to come by, hard to find the terms are never
13 really clear like identification records, and that we can say is
14 causal, so that's sort of something we're going to treat over
15 the next few months, and we Qould be happy to share those
16 Qstimates.

17 A, We saw those qﬁestions and questions

18 propounded and I'm sorry that we don't have very good numbers, I
19 think all of the assumptions you're stating is entirely

20 plausible. I'm glad that the police don't know which code

21 immigration status of everyone they arrest so it's a little

22 harder to extract the data of how many traffic violations you
23 know per year or how many tickets for driving without a license
24 or registration, two people who could but don't have them, so I
25 wish I had the numbers but I'm sorry I don't.

26 Q. Or maybe there's some type of distinction
27

between is it more likely that somebody is going to be involved
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1 in an accident with having gone, unless like they've gone
2 through traiﬁing as opposed to those who ha&en't, and then
3 figure out fifty-four thousand immigrants who don't have
4 licenses and some type of cap. o
5 Q. And (inaudible) the Department of
6 Transportation has statistics for every accident including
7 whether they have a license or insurance and that's not
8 {inaudible). |
9 A. Yes, D.O.T. R
10 COLLIQUY INAUDIBLE
11 Q. 1In your fesearch, did you come across how
12 these states, Utah, Washington, and New Mexico, how do they when
13 they issue the driver's license to an undocumented person, how
14 do they identify the identity of that individual?
i5 What credentials are they using?
16 . What credentials are they using to identify
17 them?
18 A. S0 Utah, 1 know, uses the ID which is
19 the illegal tax identification number issued by the IRS.
20 Basically people have Federal income tax obligations regardless
21 of their status so the IRS in some places is working;
22 (inaudible) government agencies, in issuing this number
23 regardless of status, so that becomes the basis.
24 A. There must be more, and I don't know
25 the
26 answer 1 thought we would be glad to provide that ‘to you what
27 kind of verification or identity or so fofth it is in those
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1 states.
2 0. I see from Letslik's (phonetic spelling)
3 point of view is one of the (inaudible) but how can we identify
4 that that (inaudible). I'm curious to know what those other
5 states are doing, (inaudible).
6 A, Well we'll be happy to supply that. It
7 is the case that the DMV currently has a two tier system, and a
8 regular license is issued to non-citizens so they're already
9 have a system in place which must be accepted at this point, and
10 ask for birth certificates or whatever the documentary
11 requirements are, they're already relying on them to issue the
12 non-Select ID licenses today.
13 It might be useful to expand those slightly again. I think this
14 a matter of regulation not statue, and certainly in New Haven
15 for instance who you've had the experience with the
16 LC Resident Card of thinking hard about what kinds of documents
17 are necessary to establish identity and residence (inaudible).
18 I know my clinic became involved in fhat after ¥ noticed the
19 conversations we were in that the Federal Governmenf had an
20 input as to how to insure (inaudible) documents using forensic
21 analysis to be able to distinguish
22 (inaudible). They had lots of suggestions for City of New Haven
23  which the City of New Haven was glad to adopt to insure that
24 they actually were verifying identity of residents. But I think
25  the DMV's part {inaudible} involved in.
26 0. Thank you.
27 Q. At the beginning of your testimony you
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1 mentioned the oerganization that you're working with and you also
2 spoke about a public event where the Governor was actually
3 present. From the testimony that we heard of that meeting that
4 we held a few months ago,‘we heard that the Governor was asked
5 the question as to what his position would be with giving
6 licenses to undocumented immigrants. Could you tell us what the
7 response was at the time? .
8 A. I don't think they were taping that, just
9 like you guys were taping this. We were both there. The
10 Governor was asked whether in ﬁrinciple he suppor£ed national
11 licenses and registration without regard to immigration status.
12 His-answer was "yes". He then spoke in particular about the
13 need to obtain insurance, insurance for all drivers because of
14 the effects on insurance as well as everybody else. So he then
15 spoke about mutual insurance. But his answer for the use of
i6 these in principle was “"yes".
17 Q. And the next question that I have is you
i8 mention that tﬁere may be a couple of ways of changing this, one
19 of those of course would be through regulation and you explained
20 that process, and also through statute.
21 With your research and experience on this
22 topic what would you suggest to the Committee as to how we
23 should move forward if we decide to make a recommendation,'
24 statutory change or via regular change?
25 4. I hesitate to say too much because
26 the
27 Committee, there's a iot of years experience aroun& this table
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1 and a lol of expertise about this question. It strikes me that
2 reqgulatory process is often faster. It can be a stroke of a pen
3 essentially if DMV and then it goes through much {inaudible)
4 process; and therefore it might less burdensome and in a way the
5 guestion is why not, why argue if they gain the two tier scheme
6 you already have in place more accessible to more Connecticut
7 residents for all its reasons. That is in no way a resisténce
8 to new Legislation but you know it's a short session this year,
9 it's already late Januvary with realistic prospects of moving
10 until the session seems to be diminished, and at this point to
11 give (inaudible) whereas again the regulatory process is a
1.2 well-established process in Connecticut, it's a (inaudible)
i3 process, and I think the Agency probably, I won't speak f&r the
14 Agency but in general Agencies prefer the flexibility
15 regulations of the statutes which can be a more permanent
16 mandate, so generallyII think the Agency woﬁld prefer to make
17 the changes in regulation because then than between it can be
18 adopted again more easily than the (inaudible) process.
19 Q. And the next question is in your
20 testimony you mentioned that there are some documented
21 deficiencies in the DMV using the program SAVE. Can you give us
22 nmore explanation about that statement?
23 A, 1 don't know if I have the specific
24 details. There has definitely been research done about using
25 the magic two minute documentation base and this could be false
26 infofmation extracted because of falsification of documents.
27 Q. But I cannot (inaudible).

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video

860-549-1850 production@brandonreporting.com 249 Pearl Street



Fact Finding Hearing-: ™

1/1575012 4 Transcription
Page 58
1 ) A, Well we would be glad to provide that
2 (inaudible). I'm sorry we don't have that with us, but I do
3 knew that that G.A.O. frequently surveys databases and these
4 agencies consistently ranks the databases with the: Departnent of
5 Homeland Security as the worst databases in the entire Federal
6 Government in terms of accuracy, imperfections in false peolicies
7 and false statements, so0 it would be surprising if the SAVE
8 Database is actually a well-functioning database given the
a historic research on such databases. I think {inaudible) leads
10 to many states of objection, well, because they know that this
11 is a poor databasé on the reliance of chronicle have real
12 consequences for data they are granting us. We will continue
13  the (inaudible). '
14 0. And, my friend, requesting a copy of,
15 can we get a copy of your testimony so that we can submit it for
16  the record?
17 A. Yeah, of course. 1It's in the car and
i8 we'll send it to you in the next couple of days.
19 Q. That would be just fine.
20 ‘ © 0. Do you have any recommendations how we
21 would work together with the groups you're working with?
22 A. I'm sure Connect, I believe Connect
23 - would be delighted to work together and we've even talked about
24 Connect Representatives sitting at perhaps your next Hearing as
25 well, That's off line and for the Hartford Hearings
26 (inaudible), I would think that that you could let sit down and
27 talk more concretely about what can be done; again, I don't know
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1 what channels are that this Commission
2 should choose to reduce your communicative agency as opposed to
3 initiating ({inaudible) process. But I know that you are
4 ~certainly welcome {inaudible) this body directed.to.the agency
5 whatever (inaudible), but whether it's through Zap or
6 {inaudible), I am delighted to sit down and ﬁalk at the Hearings
7 {inaudible} together. ‘
3 Q. We heard tesﬁimony before from the State
9 Department of Motor Vehicles that the movement from the other
10 states that allow undocumented immigrants access to licenses is
1.1 actually going the opposite way rather than increasing the
12 state's changing this. Do you havé any information that Qould
13 contradict that or any thoughts about the commentary from the
14 DMV ?
15 A. That is an accurate statemént. Today
i6 there are three states, it has passed through more than three
'17 states, so it is I think an unfortunate political trend in some
18 states and T don't know enough about what happened what
19 (inaudible)} see or what the (inaudible} may be at issue in other
20 states to use three states for their going ahead direction.
21 But it is certainly a true statement that there used to be more
22 than three, but I'm not aware, my understanding, I'm not expert
23 in all these state struggles, it's marginally politics that
24 overwhelm reason and then the state and the (inaudible) are in
25 play, and there is the same public safety conclusions by the
26 same state police {(inaudible) , the same {(inaudible) analysis
27 tends to play it out so (inaudible) but there have been
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1 political changes made by political leaders sometimes to go to

2 the (inaudible), I think that's unfortunate, I should say I

3 - think it affects all of ﬁs, not only the individuals who should

4 .have licenses but it can affect all of us who drive on the roads

5 in this country, but Connecticut, would not be alone if it were
.6 to push back and stop as there has béen indication (inaudible).

7 Q. I have a guestion, being that

8 Connecticut, we not sure if they're goinglto implement this at

9 the end of the day, the Real ID, would it make a difference T
10 know they would haye the two tier system under that program, and
11 the goal would be to allow the second tier:to incorporate more
12 drivers, you know, regardless of their status. Is there a
13 chance that, would it make a difference if that Real ID doesn't
14 go forward, that under the current law, the current regulation
15 that we could still amend the policy to include drivers,
i6 immigrants. So even if they don't implement Real IP and have
17 the two tier system under the current standard, you think that
18 amending the policy we could still submit, you know, they could
18 theoretically submit Regulation, a change of the Regulétion to;
20 okay; to incorporate more arivers?'
21 . A. Yes, I think, again, I think Real ID is
22 postponed and postponed and eventually appealed and it's
23 (inaudible). My guess is.that a future DMV Commissioner might
24 say well why bother with this two tiered system, two different
25 colors and two different sets of forms, it's the history of
206 burden that's strengthens that purpose and it would probably
27 identify them, and again I hate the (inaudible). To its credit,
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1 the DMV has recognized that the two tier is authorized under
2 Federal Law and will begin when it takes effect and that they
3 should provide some acts as to drivers licenses. There will be
4 some drivers who don't meet the Real ID standards so that's all
5 to their credit. I just think that they should go further}
6 (inaudible), 'but they can continue the two tier system if Real
7 iID does come into effect or they could unify if they wanted to.
8 There's nothing in sﬁate law or federal law that mandates the
9 two tiered system or permits it. (Inaudible) choice.
10 MR. DIAZ: {Inaudible) so refer to
11 Commissioner Candal to finish off.
12 MR. CANDAL: Yeah, well thank you very much
13 for coming all tﬁe way from New Haven and --
14 {INAUDIBLE COLLIQUY)
15 MR. WISHNIE: Thank you all for your interest
416 in this topic, of course, (inaudible) the people of this state
17 are directing as the rest of us all were'(inaudible). I think
i8 it's timely. I think there is an opening. I think the current
19 statutes permit it, and again I think the DMV has already
20 recognized the importance of this Hearing and observed the
21 access to licenses for some drivers who don't fit the Federal
22 Standafds, they've already gone that far. I think being
23 encouraged to go further to serve all these public safety'and
24 revenue as well.
25 Q. Finally, how long would it take to
26 obtain additional information regarding benefits, you know, to
27 the state, is that something, do you have any time line?

Brandon Smith Reporting & Video

860-549-1850 production@brandonreporting,com 249 Pearl Street




Fact Finding Hearing

1/18/2012 X Transcription
Page 62
1 A, No more than a few weeks I would say,
2 Q. A few weeks?
3 A, I can say {inaudible}.
| 0. So I guess témorrow is out of the
5 guestion.
6 A. I think several of -the group héd to, I
7 think some of thé data will be available under the Freedom of
8 Information Request, for instance, the Department of
9 Transportation or others cooperating with the Commission, you
10 know, can just provide it, they were, would like to typify it or
11 it was harder to assemble, the Agency wasn't really successful
12 in soﬁe of those (inaudible} are harder to (inaudible).
13 Q. If you had a request of information we
14 could submit it to our future panelists, or future speakers.
15 A. Right,
16 Q. Right.
17 A, So let us be sure that we have all of
18 your questions marked so we can generate the data, the data
19 question, but that might (inaudible).
20 0. Great, thank you. Thank you very much.
21 MR. CRUZ: We have to discuss what the next
22 steps (inaudiblé).
23 Chairman Diaz, Chairman Diaz, we have ten more
24 . minutes to discuss our Committee's next steps.
25 MR. DIAZ: Okay.
26 You had to file a motion.
27 MR. CRUZ: Ten minutes.
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1 MR. DIAZ: All right gentleman, so I think we
2 have to go forward to the next step here, decide what we are
3 going to do. I-was talking to Werner, I think that we probably
4 want'ﬁo have somebody from the Department of Transportation,
5 also we need to have the additional information by Yale as far
6 as étatistics and guestions that they have, so that way we could
7 present them to the people from D.é.T. or anybody else, okay. I
8 would think and hopefully in three or four weeks they wouid haﬁe
9 those questions ready in their date. So perhaps have another
10 session in about thirty/forty-five days and then that session
1 also include testimony from somebody whose interviewed
12 immigrants just to tie up the last portion to see if in fact
i3 given the opportunity they would actually go forward and get a
14 license.
15
16
17
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20
21
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23
24
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26
27
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EDITORIAL

Let Immigrants Get Driver's Licenses

6:56 PM EST, February 18, 2013

In a perfect wotld, everyone in this country would be here
legally and be eligible for ail of the privileges of ¢itizenship.
In the world we've got, however, there are some 12 million
undocumented immigrants in the country, tens of thousands
in Connecticut,

The vast majority came here to work and gain a better life —
the same réason people have been coming to these shores for
nearly four centuries. As New York Times writer Adam
Davidson recently observed, the immi grants mostly help the
economy. But to do so, many need to drive.

A bill before the General Assembly would aflow
undocumented immigrants to get driver's licenses. On
balance, it is a good idea and should pass.

Opponents of such measures — now the law in three states — say that it shouldn't be allowed because it
rewards people who are breaking the law. That is true. It is also true that the economy embraces many
illegals. In short, this is a complex national issue, one the federal government must resolve. The state, in the
meantime, has to deal with the situation on the ground. :

Congregations Organized for a New Connecticut, a group of more than two dozen religious congregations
from the southwestern part of the state, has researched the issue and believes that allowing an estimated
54,000 undocumented immigrants to get licenses would make driving safer and less expensive for everyone,

CONECT estimates that unlicensed immigrants drive up auto insurance premiurms by $20 million a year, If
they now had to pass the driving test and get insurance, those premiums would presumably come down, as
would costs associated with accidents. The group slso estimates the state would garner $2 million a year in
additional registration fees. : ' '

Police would be able to check their driving records, and not waste time sending them to court for driving
without a license. With a license, drivers will be more likely to stay at the scene of an accident, report crimes
and generally cooperate with police.

Until Congress enacts cotnprehensive immigration reform, which may or may not happen this year, the state
has to act in its best interest. Connecticut and other states are best served by having trained, insured, licensed

drivers on the road.
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